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GROUP STRUCTURE

B

RiE

As at the date of this report, the shareholders and subsidiaries of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited were as follows:

RARER - AR REEAEEERMARARZBREMBEARNAT

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary

Food Company

Other domestic shareholders

H shareholders
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
SERME

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | am delighted to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010 (the “Reporting
Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

2010 has seen the Chinese economy gradually rebounding robustly
out of the international financial crisis impact. Thanks to the stimulus
package policies adopted by the Chinese government and the growth
of the people’s disposable income, Chinese consumers’ confidence
has regained momentum. The domestic consumer goods market has
expanded quickly and steadily. Under this background, the Group has
grasped opportunities and pushed forward both its wholesale and retail

business, realizing stable sales growth in the report period.

In the retail business, the Group continued its tactics of regional expansion
and built more outlets in Beijing and in the Langfang region of Hebei
Province. It acquired the 100% equity interest of the Beijing Shou-Lian
Supermarket Co., Ltd. in which operations were delegated to it. The
acquisition has helped consolidate coverage advantage of the Group
in Beijing and expanded its market share in the Langfang region. By
renovating and upgrading some existing shops, the Group has improved
the shop environment. Further, core competitiveness has been greatly
promoted by the Group’s efforts to optimize procurement, logistics and

operational process management.

In the wholesale business, the Group made greater endeavors in brand
development and network expansion, harvesting the growth of brands
and channels, as well as expansion of the distribution network. While
consolidating the market in the urban area of Beijing, the Group established
subsidiaries or marketing departments in the suburban region, occupying
the distribution market in the suburbs and exploring the potential of the
wholesale market in rural areas. With these efforts, our brand influence

is stretching further across all of the Beijing region.
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The Group achieved the following during the Reporting Period:

o Revenue was approximately RMB7,439,000,000, representing an

increase of approximately 11.2% as compared to 2009;

° Gross profit was approximately RMB1,041,000,000, representing

an increase of approximately 11.8% as compared to 2009;

o Gross profit margin was approximately 14.0%, representing a slight
increase as compared to 13.9% in 2009;

° Profit attributable to equity holders was approximately

RMB180,500,000, representing an increase of approximately 22.1%

as compared to 2009;

° Basic earnings per share was approximately RMB43.8 cents (2009:

RMB35.9 cents); and

° The proposed final dividend per share was RMB20 cents (tax

inclusive, 2009: RMB18 cents).

PROSPECTS

2011 kicks off the 12th Five-Year Plan of China. In the next 5 years, it
is expected that the global economy will continue moderate recovery
while the Chinese economy will intensify its growth model driven by
domestic demand. The Chinese government will focus on transforming the
economic growth model, reforming wealth allocation structure, increasing
the income of the Chinese people, and enlarging the consumption volume.
These macro-economic policies will greatly boost the growth of wholesale
and retail business, which is the core business of our Group. Furthermore,
the Bohai Economic Rim is maturing gradually and the integration of
Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei is being implemented. The economic growth
in Beijing’s economic ring provides a greater space for the growth and
expansion of enterprises. Beijing is now in the phase of building of an
international metropolis, working on many infrastructure projects and
increasing land reserve. These moves have brought new opportunities

for our Group to expand.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT &£ K #{&

The year 2011 is also the first year of our Group’s 4th Five-Year Plan,
the blueprint of the Group. We will work hard to realize the goal set
for this period, namely, “based in Beijing, stretching into Tianjin and
Hebei, radiating the Bohai Economic Rim and building the Group into
a competitive distribution company in the region”. While concentrating
on improving core competitiveness, the Group will work hard to step
up the progress, optimize the existing wholesale and retail distribution
network, enlarge our scale, improve profitability, realize rapid and sound
development, and bring excellent returns on the investment for all

shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their trust and support to all investors, business
partners, suppliers and customers for their support and assistance, and
our appreciation to all staff and the management team for their hard work

and contribution to the Group during the Reporting Period.

Wei Tingzhan

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
18 March 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR [T wm AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2010, as the macro-economic situation improved and the market
vitality ushered in new development opportunities, the wholesale and
retail business of fast moving consumer goods embraced the great
opportunity. The Group upheld its stable-development tactics in expanding
the distribution network, consolidated its leading position in the regional
market, refined internal management, improved operation techniques,
upgraded the efficiency of procurement, logistics and operational

management, and achieved stable results growth.

RETAIL BUSINESS

Stably expanding the retail network and acquiring the Shou Lian
Supermarket

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued its tactics of regional
expansion. It opened 12 directly-operated stores (1 department store,
6 supermarkets and 5 convenience stores), and 9 franchised stores (1
supermarket and 8 convenience stores) in Beijing and the Langfang
region of Hebei province. The Qingta Community Shopping Center
(including 1 department store and 1 supermarket, both being theme
stores) successfully duplicated the model in Jiuxiangiao Community
Shopping Center of the Group. These two shopping centers have helped
materialized the Group’s reasonable distribution in the eastern and western

parts of Beijing, laying a solid foundation for further expansion.

Under fierce market competition, the Group renovated and upgraded
5 existing stores, improving the shopping environment to attract more
customers. The sales of these 5 stores increased greatly after the

renovation.

Since February 2007 when the Shou Lian shops were delegated to
the Group, their sales and profitability have gradually improved due to
brand effect and system resources of Jingkelong. To expand the Group’s
coverage in Beijing and trigger synergy with Shoulian shops, the Group
finalized the acquisition of 20 Shoulian shops at the end of 2010. Most
of these shops are located beyond Chao Yang District, complementing
the Group’s original network in Beijing. We are confident that the Shoulian
shops will see better operation efficiency and bring great profits for
the Group.

EBEE

—T-TF  BERELERE TSRO
o REHERTEMMBTEDLRTHNER
e AEEADIEETSIE  —HTHERR
EHBERRBARDHRAE  ZEEERIATSN
B - BT EBRRIIEE - EITRAL
B NELERM 2EREABMEKE  BEX
REEERRE  BRTEENTRER -

4

TEXRK

BRIMREHASL  EFRRBEBED

HREMAN AEBEERSRECERRE &£
b7 KA b B Y 4t [ 57 5 B 2 5 8812/ (2 11
BEJE  ofma ™ RoRENE) - ¥ MEE
O (BIE 1R A BT ReMIENE) - A FiEit
BEYTL(BE-—HREEE  —MEaBEmmE
TREIE)WRAZKRES T RBEILBHLREY T
DEER  BERTRZEREILLRTSR - BEH
BEME  RORE—FHREET REFEAR -

EMS@EFETNENRET  RIEFEHOE
BER  BBREBENRS N NEBEEEH5
MRBEHET T REE  EBYREREXR
= RERERBER -

BE-ZTLF_AREEBERBAR  EB=F
ZHESG KERREENREREMNEZRE
R EEEREERRTBRNEENE T FEK
Z o REBAELRMSNMENESZ  E—FiE
HEBEHNBRBE  AEER-_T-FTFR
TER T B B 20 E HA KA - HIEHER
fIRIE R G R AN EE - BAKEE
WEBTABREM - TARGE TAREFES
EMEHBE - PRELENE  RAKEER
BEFMER

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 E 515w k94

The following table set out the number and net operating area of the

Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2010:

T%ﬁ\lmﬂi‘il
EFYERE MF

—E-TFE+_A=1+—88
LEMEE

Department Convenience
stores Hypermarkets Supermarkets stores Total
BEHS REH meEEm E RS &%
Number of retail outlets ZEMEHE
Directly-operated ERE 2 74 62 146
Franchise-operated BRF N IR - - 2 88 90
2 8 76 150 236
Net operating area FEEER
(square metres) (EHXK):
Directly-operated HEE 39,742 68,223 155,523 14,375 277,863
Franchise-operated BT s - - 4,048 16,168 20,216
39,742 68,223 159,571 30,543 298,079
Improving the intensive procurement system and strengthening ZTESHFEEBEZR » R LHEBD
core competitiveness
Adopting the Procurement Accountability Mechanism. To innovate EEFEBEFH - EERKBEEE  AEHEEERN

the procurement and profit-making model and reform the traditional
procurement approach in which the procurement staff is only responsible
for purchasing but not for selling, the Group has appointed the certain
procurement commissioners for specific categories of goods, who
are not only responsible for channel assessment, developing new
goods, negotiating transaction terms and ensuring timely delivery, but
also responsible for display guidance, configuration management and
promotion design of the goods in the category they look after. In this
way, the procurement commissioners have the intensified duty to manage
the structure and sales of the goods they have procured, thus greatly

improving the competitiveness of the goods in the retail outlets.

Exploring the channel origin to ensure quality goods. The Group, by
procuring branded goods, made great efforts to boost the overall sales
volume. It made site visits to check the production procedure, equipment,
hygiene and management of the newly-developed suppliers. By signing
goods supply guarantee agreements, sending the Group’s personnel to
reside in the goods supplier’s factory and uniform transit of daily-supplied
goods, the Group ensured the sources of major goods supply during

festivals and holidays and daily fresh food.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 €& & &k 24T

Professional procurement of fresh food from production bases. The
Group established separate Fresh Produce Procurement Centers. By
taking full advantage of the procurement centers in the category, grade,
price and freshness of the fresh produce, the Group conducted strict
control of selecting, grading, quality inspection and acceptance to ensure
it procures good quality and healthy fresh produce. In 2010, the Group,
for the first time, contracted aquatic products in Zhou Shan, Wen Ling

and Bei Hai, increasing the sales of aquatic products.

Greater efforts in building the logistics centers and improving
the logistics system

The normal-temperature logistics center is becoming a modern
logistics service. Following the modern logistics norm featured by
“three-dimensional storage, paperless operation, mechanized transport,
single-direction flow and standard logistics”, the Group initiated the
project of renovating and upgrading the normal-temperature logistics
center to match the sales growth target set for the next 5 years. During
the Reporting Period, we have finalized project feasibility study, plan and
procedure drafting, civil construction and information system switch.
After the project is completed, the efficiency of the normal-temperature
logistics center will considerably improve. At the same time, it will be
able to provide the best logistics service tailored for each shop and
convenience store, and meet the increasing demand for goods logistics

of our directly-operated and franchised shops.

Strengthening the internal management of the Fresh Food Logistics
Center. After the procurement function is taken away from the Fresh Food
Logistics Center, the efforts were concentrated on internal management,
regulating the work procedure, improving quality control and cost control.
The Logistics Center also engaged in secondary delivery and provided
guidance for meat selling in the shops. These efforts greatly improved
the delivery efficiency of fresh food and retained many customers of

fresh food for the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &3 & 71 M 5

Strengthening operational management and promoting sales in

retail outlets

Strengthening the management of fresh produce and improving
operations. By selling fresh produce whole day in the shops, and carrying
out uniform operating hours and categories of fresh produce in all shops,
the shops greatly improved the quality, display and sale atmosphere of
the fresh produce. At the same time, the Group adopted a standard
inspection mechanism, enhanced the operational management of the
shops, properly adjusted the goods display and added to the categories
of goods to satisfy consumer demands.

New marketing ideas and regulated shop image. Considering the
season features and different demands for goods at different times, the
Group shops launched theme promotions for every 2 months. On local
cuisine weeks and the Group’s anniversary, the shops launched promotions
in the form of coupons and percentage discount. These innovative
promotions, combined with marketing themes, have strengthened the
marketing results. At the same time, the Group pushed forward the
marketing standards, introduced uniform price tags, theme POP and
billboards, thus reducing the marketing cost and building a unified shop

image.

Better service for the member card holders to develop customer
loyalty. The Group organized the monthly “Membership Day” on the
second Tuesday of each month. On the Membership Day, member
card holders can get double bonus points, half price and discounted
price for some goods in the shops. Furthermore, the Group provided
the membership service and organized lectures for the members. On
average, the sales on the Membership Days increased by 5% compared

with those on non-Membership-Day Tuesdays.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 €& & &k 24T

Operation results of retail business

ZEXBLEERR

An analysis of the revenue contributed by the Group’s directly-operated AEEBEEHZHEMEEG - KES ~ BT REF
hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience stores and department store  JERIURA DT 2720 :
is set out as follows:
2010 2009 Increase
—E-ZF ZETNF BR
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
ARBTT AREFIT (%)
Directly-operated retail outlets: HETEEH
Hypermarkets RES 1,057,554 1,000,240 5.7
Supermarkets AT 2,027,623 1,836,552 10.4
Convenience stores EF & 278,647 250,271 11.3
Department store BEES 31,535 23,148
(including commission) (BEAalA) (25,528) (23,148) 10.3
Total retail revenue SERABT 3,395,359 3,110,211 9.2
Gross profit margin of directly-operated E#& K& - RA8™
hypermarkets, supermarkets BEAEZEFNE(%)
and convenience stores (%) 16.8 16.4 0.4

The retail revenue of the Group increased by approximately 9.2% during
the Reporting Period, which was mainly attributable to (i) the sales growth
of retail business along with the impact of the international financial crisis
gradually disappeared and consumers confidence regained momentum as
well as the sales increase resulted from the rise of Consumer Price Index;
(i) the continuous increase of sales contribution from the retail outlets
opened in the previous two years which had gradually matured after a
period of operation experience and the improvement of promotion; (i) the
contributions from several renovated stores and the new stores opened
in 2010 and the second half of 2009; and (iv) the significant sales growth
of fresh produce due to the self-operated capability improvement of pork,
beef and mutton, vegetable and fruits, the price of which increased a lot

during the Reporting Period.

The increase in gross profit margin generated from the directly-operated
hypermarkets, supermarkets and convenience stores from approximately
16.4% in 2009 to approximately 16.8% in the Reporting Period, was
mainly due to (i) bargaining power with suppliers strengthened based on
the increase in purchase volume as a result of expansion of distribution
network and the purchase costs reduced accordingly; (i) the increased
gross profit resulted from the project of “agriculture super-docking”, which
provided customers with live and fresh produce; and (i) the continuous

optimisation of product mix.
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WHOLESALE BUSINESS

Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Trading”) became
a joint stock company. During the Reporting Period, Chaopi Trading, a
subsidiary of the Group, was converted from a company of limited liability
into a joint stock company. The reform helped to improve the corporate

governance structure and regulate the business development.

Greater efforts to develop channels and brands. Through the
strengthened efforts in negotiations with suppliers, the number of the
source suppliers and brands increased during the Reporting Period,
stimulating sales growth. Based on the consumption change and demand
for better quality goods, the Group imported some wines and food from
foreign suppliers for the first time, laying a foundation for the future sales

of imported goods.

Expanding the network coverage. While increasing the urban market
share, the Group also made efforts to expand into the rural areas of
Beijing. It established the subsidiaries and marketing departments for the
suburban markets. By exploring in the wholesale market model suitable
for the suburban and rural areas of Beijing, the Group occupied the new

markets and improved its market share.

Greater efforts to build the logistics and distribution system. To
provide support for the rapid growth of wholesale business, the Group
introduced the second automatic sorting line for the wholesale distribution
center during the Reporting Period, which greatly improved the sorting
efficiency. The third-party logistics and distribution service moved
smoothly. During the Reporting Period, another 7 third-party logistics
clients were added. The distribution volume increased considerably and

became the new income source.
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Operation results of wholesale business

The wholesale revenue and gross profit margin is analysed as follows:.

BBERCEEE
HEXBHRARENERNIFTNT -

Increase/

2010 2009 (Decrease)

—E-ZF —ETNF #hn, RL)

RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)

ARH AR (BZtE)

Revenue recognised by Chaopi Group I EBERARA 4,151,728 3,636,068 14.2

Less: Intersegment sales R D EBEEE (538,132) (521,670) 3.2
Sales to franchisees by the Company ABE MNBAEREE 422,418 459,093 (8.0)

Consolidated wholesale revenue SOt A 4,036,014 3,573,491 12.9

Gross profit margin* (%) EFE (%) 11.0 10.3 0.7
* Represents gross profit margin recognised by Chaopi Trading and its  * ZEMEEASAHEREMBRAR(SHE BEitE

subsidiaries (collectively the “Chaopi Group”) including intersegment sales. BDAERNEFNXR(BEHHEEE) -

The increase in wholesale revenue realised by Chaopi Group of
approximately 14.2% during the Reporting Period was primarily due to
(i) the in line expansion of wholesale business with the rapid expansion
of network and sales growth of Chaopi Group’s main customers under
the gradually improved economic situation; (i) the increase of district
distributorship of brands with high sales expanded the market share; (iii)
the stable sales growth of the new subsidiaries established in 2010 as
well as the subsidiaries set up in the previous several years; and (iv) the
contribution of sales growth by the rise of food products price especially

the price of famous brands of liquors.

The increase in gross profit margin recorded by the wholesale business
from approximately 10.3% to approximately 11.0% in the Reporting
Period was mainly because of (i) better bargaining power with suppliers
due to increase in purchase volume; and (ii) the continuous optimisation
of product mix. The sales proportion of high-end liquors and edible oils
with higher gross margin increased along with the gradually improved

economic situation.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue A

Gross profit EF

Gross profit margin(%) EFZE(%)
Other income and gains E AU R
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ry SHAK AR
Administrative expenses THAX

Other expenses HEa
Finance costs [ELEEIDEIN
Income tax expense Frig®if 2
Profit for the year FEREN

582 (%)
DA AT

Net profit margin (%)
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the parent

Net profit margin attributable to NCIESYEDN Al
equity holders of the parent (%) R F (%)
Basic earnings per share-RMB (cents) FRERAF - ARE(D)

Revenue

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after deduction

of relevant taxes and allowances for returns and trade discounts.

The increase of the Group’s revenue of approximately 11.2% during the
Reporting Period was primarily due to the increase in retail and wholesale

revenue of approximately 9.2% and 12.9%, respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group increased by
approximately 11.8% as compared to 2009. The increase was in line
with the increase in revenue. The slight increase in gross profit margin
from approximately 13.9% to approximately 14.0% in the current year
was mainly attributable to the increase in gross profit margins of both

the retail and wholesale businesses.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly comprise income from suppliers, rental
income from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and counters, and

interest income.
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WIS
2010 2009 Increase
—E-BF ZZETNF BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
AR®Tx ARBFIT (%)
7,438,729 6,691,036 11.2
1,041,257 931,720 11.8
14.0 13.9 0.1
495,442 423,709 16.9
(880,270) (744,743) 18.2
(213,020) (226,943) (6.1)
(44,458) (45,069) (1.4)
(93,940) (85,109) 104
(76,510) (65,049) 17.6
228,501 188,516 21.2
3.1 2.8 0.3
180,502 147,783 22.1
2.4 2.2 0.2
43.8 35.9 22.0
N
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The Group’s other income and gains increased by approximately 16.9%
in the Reporting Period, mainly due to the increase from suppliers and

rental income of approximately 20.5% and 9.1%, respectively.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs mainly comprise of salary and welfare,
depreciation expenses, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and maintenance
expenses, transportation expenses, packaging expenses, and advertising

and promotion expenses.

The Group’s selling and distribution costs were approximately
RMB880,270,000 in the Reporting Period, representing an increase of
approximately 18.2% compared to 2009. The increase was primarily due
o (i) the increase in salary and welfare, depreciation, rental expenses
and promotion expenses of the new retail outlets and the renovated
retail outlets, (i) the increase of energy fee resulted from the rise in price
of water, electricity and gas, etc.; and (iii) as the distributor between
suppliers and retail operators, the income from suppliers for promotion
and the expenses paid to retail operators of the wholesale business are
accounted for promotion income and promotion expenses, respectively.
During the Reporting Period, more frequent promotion activities were
launched, while the increase of promotion expenses was in line with the

growing trend of promotion income in wholesale business.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), depreciation

expenses and entertainment expenses.

The Group’s administrative expenses were approximately RMB213,020,000
in the Reporting Period, represented a decrease of approximately of 6.1%
compared to 2009. The decrease was mainly because of the enhanced

management on administrative expenses.

Other expenses

Other expenses primarily comprise business tax, city construction tax and

surcharges mainly charged on rental income and service income.
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The Group’s other expenses decreased from approximately RMB45,069,000
in 2009 to approximately RMB44,458,000 in 2010. The decrease was
mainly because the Company disposed some non-current assets due to
the closure of a hypermarket in 2009 and there was no such disposal
during the Reporting Period.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interest on bank loans, other borrowings and

short-term debentures.

The Group’s finance costs increased from approximately RMB85,109,000
in 2009 to approximately RMB93,940,000 in 2010, and was primarily due
o (i) the increase of interest from the added short-term bank loan and
debentures issued for the needs of operation, and (i) the central bank
of China increased twice the loan rate during the second half of 2010

also had impact on the finance costs of the Company.

Income tax expense

The Group was not subject to Hong Kong profit tax as the Group had
no assessable profit arising in or deriving from Hong Kong during the
Reporting Period.

The members of the Group were subject to corporate income tax at a
rate of 25% during the Reporting Period on their respective taxable profit

pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax expense increased from approximately RMB65,049,000 to
approximately RMB76,510,000 in 2010, primarily due to the increase in
2010 taxable profits.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year increased by approximately 21.2% from approximately
RMB188,516,000 in 2009 to approximately RMB228,501,000 in the
current year. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase in gross
profit of approximately 11.8% and an increase in other income and gains
of approximately 16.9%.
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Basic earnings per share

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately RMB43.8
cents for 2010, which was calculated on the basis of the number of
412,220,000 shares, representing approximately 22.0% higher than
RMB35.9 cents of last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations
through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and short-term
debentures.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had non-current assets of
approximately RMB2,153,416,000, which mainly comprised property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB1,839,832,000, and non-
current liabilities of approximately RMB454,759,000 mainly comprised
of interest-bearing bank borrowings RMB430,000,000 and deferred tax
liabilities of approximately RMB12,286,000.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had the net current assets of
approximately RMB6,101,000. Current assets mainly comprised cash
and cash equivalents (mainly denominated in RMB) of approximately
RMB574,532,000, inventories of approximately RMB997,356,000, trade
receivables of approximately RMB1,185,689,000 and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables of approximately RMB542,034,000. Current
liabilities mainly comprised of trade and bills payables of approximately
RMB1,065,512,000, interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
RMB1,185,000,000, short-term debentures of RMB500,000,000 per value
and other payables and accruals of approximately RMB597,817,000.

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had an aggregate borrowings (all
denominated in RMB) of approximately RMB1,615,000,000, consisted
of secured long-term bank loans of approximately RMB430,000,000,
unsecured short-term bank loans of RMB1,185,000,000 and unsecured
short-term debentures of RMB500,000,000 per value (including
RMB300,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 respectively with fixed interest
rate of 3.4% and 3.6% per annum). All the Group’s bank loans bear fixed
interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.6% per annum. The secured bank

loans were secured by:
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- Certain of the Group’s buildings, investment properties and lease
prepayments for land use rights with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately RMB190,000,000 as at 31 December 2010.

The Group’s net gearing ratio® was approximately 89.1% as at 31
December 2010 which was higher than 72.6% as at 31 December 2009.
The increase was primarily due to an increase of bank loans and other
borrowings of The Group during the Reporting Period.

* Represented by: (Total borrowings (including short-term debentures)-pledged

deposits, and cash and cash equivalent)/Total equity

According to an independent legal opinion, all the borrowings incurred in

2010 are in compliance with the relevant PRC applicable laws.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally denominated

in Renminbi.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed 6,917 (2009: 6,869)
employees in the PRC. The total staff costs (including directors’ and
supervisors’ remunerations) of the Group for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB377,271,000 (2009: RMB359,303,000).
The staff emolument (including directors and supervisors) of the Group
are based on position, duty, experience, performance, and market rates

in order to maintain their remunerations at a competitive level.
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As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in
the defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees
operated by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The
Group is required to make contributions for those employees who are
registered as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 20% (2009:
20%) of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances.
The Group has no further obligation associated with the said defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme beyond the annual contributions.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes amounted to approximately RMB31,808,000 for the Reporting
Period (2009: RMB28,833,000).

The management believe that the Group’s employees are one of the
most valuable assets which contributed significantly to the success of
the Group. The Group provides regular internal and external training to its
employees to improve their skills and professional knowledge. During the

Reporting Period, around 70 training seminars had been conducted.

CONVERSION OF CHAOPI TRADING INTO A JOINT STOCK
LIMITED COMPANY

Pursuant to the approval of Beijing Administration for Industry and
Commerce on 31 May 2010, Chaopi Trading, an approximately 79.85%
directly owned subsidiary of the Company was converted from a limited
liability company into a joint stock limited company with registered capital
of RMB368,000,000. There is no change in the registered and paid-up
capital of Chaopi Trading and the equity interest owned by the Company
in Chaopi Trading in relation to the conversion of Chaopi Trading into a

joint stock limited company.

INCREASE OF EQUITY INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(i) On 12 January 2010, the Company acquired a 20% equity interest
in Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Company Limited (“Jingkelong
Langfang”) from China Fortune Land Development Co., Ltd., the
minority shareholder of Jingkelong Langfang, at a cash consideration
of RMB5,980,000. After such acquisition, Jingkelong Langfang
became wholly owned by the Company. Further details of the
acquisition are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
12 January 2010. The registered capital of Jingkelong Langfang
was subsequently increased from RMB10 million to RMB50 million
and was fully paid up by the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, Chaopi Trading acquired an equity
interest of approximately 16.3% in Beijing Huilong Trading Company
Limited (“Chaopi Huilong”) from a minority shareholder of Chaopi
Huilong, at a cash consideration of approximately RMB1,956,000.
After such acquisition, the Company’s indirect equity interest in

Chaopi Huilong increased from approximately 45.83% to 58.85%.

ESTABLISHMENT OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the Reporting Period, the Company through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales Company Limited (“Chaopi
Jinglong”), established a subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi Yuli Trading Company
Limited (“Chaopi Yuli”) to engage in wholesale of edible oil. The Company
holds an indirect equity interest of approximately 30.3% in Chaopi Yuli.
The registered capital of Chaopi Yuli is RMB12 million and has been
fully paid up.

ACQUISITION OF ENTIRE
SUPERMARKET

INTEREST IN SHOULIAN

On 14 December 2010, the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with Beijing Shoulian Trading Company Limited (“Shoulian”)
for the acquisition of the entire equity interest of Shoulian Supermarket
held by Shoulian at a total consideration of RMB121,160,000. Details of
this acquisition have been disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 3 December 2010 and 14 December 2010, respectively.

FORMATION OF A COMPANY WITH SHOULIAN

On 27 July 2010, the Company and Shoulian entered into an equity
investment agreement to establish a new company, Beijing Jingchao
Company Limited (“Jingchao”) with registered capital of RMB300 million,
in which the Company holds an equity interest of 14%. The Company
has fully contributed RMB42 million into the capital of Jingchao on 27
July 2010.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 January 2011, the Company acquired 86% equity interest in
Jingchao from Shoulian at a consideration of RMB259,324,500, including
cash of RMB80,000,000 and trade receivable of RMB179,324,500.
Jingchao was wholly owned by the Company from then on. Further details
of the transaction are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 18 January 2011.

Since the completion of the acquisition of Jingchao was close to the
date of approval of these financial statements, it is not practicable to

disclose further details of the acquisition.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant events

subsequent to 31 December 2011.

STRATEGIES AND PLANS

In 2011, the Group will continue its efforts to consolidate its basis
of development, speed up the progress of development, improve
management quality, and promote corporate development while
maintaining stability. It will promote its enterprise development in the

following aspects:

- Rapidly expanding retail network. Based on the regular
development model of leasing and building, we will seek the
possibility of mergers and acquisitions to speed up the expansion
of our retail network. Our aim is to open 30 stores in the year,
including 2 hypermarkets, 8 supermarkets and 20 convenience
stores (including 10 directly-operated stores and 10 franchised

stores);

- Expanding the wholesale distribution network. The Group will
continue to enlarge its market share in the urban, suburban and
rural areas of Beijing to ensure complete coverage of our wholesale
business in Beijing. We will also enhance the management of existing
subsidiaries with wholesale business beyond Beijing to expand our

market and influence in the Bohai Economic Rim;
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Improving the competitiveness of goods. While focusing on
optimization of goods structure, properly improving proportion of
high-end goods and upholding the principle of “highlighting the
middle-end goods while having both high-end and low-end goods”,
the Group will attract more high-end consumers while catering for
the customer demands of the masses. We will control the overall
categories of our goods, speed up the elimination of goods with
poor performance, improve the proportion of goods with good sales,

develop our own brands and improve customer loyalty;

Greater efforts to promote the standard of our shops. In
accordance with the national retail standard and the experience of
our domestic and Chinese counterparts, the Group will formulate
standards for the 4 forms of retail shops, build standard sample
outlets, strengthen operation features of our outlets, push forward
the standard management of our retail shops and build a sound

image of our Group;

Improving the logistics and distribution system. We will finalize the
renovation and upgrading of the normal-temperature logistics center
to fulfill all the designed functions. We will finalize the construction
of a vegetable processing workshop to improve our competence
of initially processing common vegetables and intensive processing
of brand vegetables. We will also make efforts to improve the

professional distribution and delivery of fresh produce;

Optimizing the marketing mode. By conducting customer demand
surveys, making detailed marketing plans, reforming the operational
model of discounted goods, trying new marketing methods, and
establishing the assessment mechanism of marketing methods, we

hope to promote more effective marketing for the Group.
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The Group is committed to maintain good corporate governance with
an emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence to all shareholders. The Group recognises the importance
of effective corporate governance is essential for its continual growth, and
will also attract more investors to invest in the Company. The Group has
adopted the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) with the objective of enhancing the quality

of corporate governance of the Group.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the code provisions of the Code set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period, save for the directors’

retirement by rotation as explained below.

Provision A4.2 of the Code requires that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, of a listed issuer should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Company’s
Articles of Association stipulates that each director shall be elected in
general meeting of the Company for a term of not more than three years,
and eligible for re-election upon the expiry of the term. Having taken into
account of the continuity of the Group’s operation and management
policies, the Company’s Articles of Association contains no express
provision for the directors’ retirement by rotation and thus deviating from

the aforesaid provision of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries, all the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and code of conduct regarding their securities transactions throughout

the Reporting Period.
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THE BOARD

The Board takes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Group
and be collectively responsible for safeguarding the best interest of the
Group and accountable to the shareholders. Matters that are required
to be determined or considered by the Board include overall group
strategies, substantial acquisitions and disposals, capital transactions,
annual, interim and quarterly results, distribution of dividends and other
substantial operating and financial matters. Major corporate matters that
are specifically delegated by the Board to the Group’s management include
the preparation of financial accounts for Board approval, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation
of adequate system of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with the relevant statutory requirements, rules and

regulations.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2009 annual general
meeting (the “2009 Annual General Meeting”) held on 10 June 2010, the
respective terms of Mr. Wei Tingzhan, Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan,
Mr. Liu Yuejin, Mr. Gu Hanlin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Fan Faming, Mr.
Huang Jiangming and Mr. Chung Chi Kong as a director has been early
terminated with effect from 10 June 2010. Each of Mr. Wei Tingzhan, Mr.
Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin has been re-elected as an
executive director for a three-year term commenced from 10 June 2010.
Each of Mr. Gu Hanlin and Mr. Li Shunxiang has been re-elected as a
non-executive director for a three-year term commenced from 10 June
2010. Each of Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward
has been appointed as a new independent non-executive director for a
three-year term commenced from 10 June 2010. Accordingly, the board
of directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently consists of four
executive directors (Mr. Wei Tingzhan, Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan
and Mr. Liu Yuejin), two non-executive directors (Mr. Gu Hanlin and Mr.
Li Shunxiang) and three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang
Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward). Mr. Wei Tingzhan serves

as the chairman of the Board.
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There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Each of Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin, will not receive
adirector’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on his/her executive
duties and responsibilities (other than being a director) in the Company.
Each of them is entitled to a fixed annual basic salary, a performance
based bonus (to be determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results) and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable
PRC law and regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salary
for each of the forthcoming three-year term shall be reviewed by the
remuneration committee of the Company and subject to the Board’s
approval. Mr. Wei Tingzhan, being the chairman of the Board is entitled to
an annual basic salary of RMB700,000, and a performance based bonus
(to be determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results)
and other allowance and benefits in kind under the applicable PRC law
and regulations. The two non-executive directors will not receive any
remuneration. Mr. Choi Onward, an independent non-executive director
is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee of RMB154,758 per annum
(tax inclusive). Each of the two independent non-executive directors, Mr.
Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping is entitled to receive a fixed director’s
fee of RMB35,400 per annum (after tax). The aforesaid remunerations of
the directors of the Company have been considered and approved by an

ordinary resolution passed at the 2009 Annual General Meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of having at
least three independent non-executive directors as required by the Listing
Rules. Mr. Chung Chi Kong (resigned on 10 June 2010) and Mr. Choi
Onward (appointed on 10 June 2010), both have appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and related financial management expertise.
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation in respect of their independence. The
Company is of the opinion that all of the independent non-executive

directors are independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

FERBZRABBTRERK(

S BREME
REAEMER BRERER)

%5 -

FREXSELE  FHRBLLTRBIRE KA TER

E=dE BERKEEEARARARAMNITBES
REFE(REERBLIN) RERFH - I BE#ES

FEBMBEEREAFH  R2EARARRFEEEN
AR ME AR MARIE T BOEBREIRIREE
ROEDHNE - PISERR=FERNEEE
AEFHAARAFHEZE TN ILESTSH
e ARBANEEFRFEBREENERFHFA
E#700,000C A R RAEM RS (2 ERRFF
EERBERTE) MEMRZI RKBHBEUERERRTE
ERNEMHN G - MEFRTESTRREME
FRE  AARBUIFATEFTERE R EER
BEFHNEZHRE REFARE154,758TT(EH)
HMA B IFATEFREMEENEFTES
REFARMK35,400T(HiR) - LI ARRES
MEFHEE —EENFRRAFAGERLIAE
BRFRS -

HBEMA - EFEETT LTRUBRELA=
FEIUFAITERNER - EEWMEE(R T —
TERNATABE)MERDERE(R T —FF
NATHEZE)HARBEENERXEE g5tk
HEMBERLSR - ARREWEIGAIBLIEHR
TESHEBUMNFERER - ARARARR - R
B EMARRBABGNIRE - FIEBLIFITESY
RSB -

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &4 E

Reasonable notice period and sufficient relevant information have been
given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board meetings
and make appropriate decision in relation to matters to be discussed. All
directors are entitled to include matters of their concern in the agenda of
all Board meetings. All directors are free to inspect all relevant corporate

information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 58 to 63

of this annual report.

Mr. Wei Tingzhan, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company is responsible for operation of the Board.

Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the general manager and executive director of
the Company is responsible for the Group’s daily business development

and management.

Another two executive directors, Mr. Liu Yuejin and Ms. Li Chunyan are
responsible for the retail operation and financial affairs of the Group,

respectively.

Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position so

as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.
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During the Reporting Period, 10 Board meetings were held and the
attendance records of directors (including attendance in person, by proxy

or via telephone conference) are set out below:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman) iR E(EER)
Mr. Li Jianwen TEXEAE

Ms. Li Chunyan EX-3

Mr. Liu Yuejin DR A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Gu Hanlin BEEMSEE

Mr. Li Shunxiang 2 IERE S A
Independent Non-executive Directors BAKHITES
Mr. Chung Chi Kong* §8 A T A
Mr. Fan Faming* SBIARR A
Mr. Huang Jiangming* = TR A4
Mr. Choi Onward** BRE e
Mr. Wang Liping** F RIS A
Mr. Chen Liping** PR L S A

6 Board meetings were held before their resignation as independent non-

executive directors on 10 June 2010

Hke

4 Board meetings were held after their appointment as independent non-

executive directors on 10 June 2010

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Wei Tingzhan and Mr. Li Jianwen are the chairman of the Board and
the general manager of the Company, respectively, which are two clearly
defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the operation of the
Board and ensuring the Board works effectively while the general manager
is in charge of the Group’s daily business development and management.
The Company’s Articles of Association sets out the respective duties and

power of the chairman and the general manager in detail.

BEMN EEGRABETTHREE FHES

HE(BERS2MN  BBEERR2NNEBRE
FEEE2IRHEAT
Attendance/Number of meetings
HEEERE
10/10
10/10
10/10
9/10
10/10
10/10
6/6
6/6
6/6
3/4
4/4
4/4
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B -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The first session of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the
Company was established on 29 July 2005 and the second session of
the Audit Committee was established pursuant to a resolution passed
by the Board on 13 November 2007. Following the early termination of
the respective terms of Mr. Fan Faming, Mr. Huang Jiangming and Mr.
Chung Chi Kong as an independent non-executive director on 10 June
2010, Mr. Chung Chi Kong has also ceased as the chairman, and Mr. Fan
Faming and Mr. Huang Jiangming have both ceased as the members of
the second session of the Audit Committee. Pursuant to the resolutions
passed at the Board meeting (the “Board Resolutions”) held on 10
June 2010, the third session of the Audit Committee which consists of
all independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Choi Onward was
appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping
were both appointed as members, has been established for a three-year

term commenced from 10 June 2010.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in line with
the provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee provides an important
link between the Board and the external auditors in matters falling
within the scope of the audit of the Group. It reviews the effectiveness
of the external audit, internal controls and risk evaluation and, provides

comments and suggestions to the Board.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the Reporting Period for
reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussing internal controls and financial reporting matters including
a review of the 2009 annual report, and the 2010 quarterly and interim

results.
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The attendance records of the Audit Committee (including attendance in

person, by proxy or via telephone conference) are set out below:

Mr. Chung Chi Kong* (chairman) B ()
Mr. Fan Faming* ,B/iﬁﬂf‘ﬁi*
Mr. Huang Jiangming* %}IEH?EE*
Mr. Choi Onward** (chairman) BEREmEE(EE)
Mr. Wang Liping** F A Se A
Mr. Chen Liping** PR AL S A

2 meetings were held before their resignation as chairman/members of the
Audit Committee on 10 June 2010

ke

2 meetings were held after their appointment as chairman/members of the
Audit Committee on 10 June 2010

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2010 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors on
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, internal

control and financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The first session of the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Company was established on 29 July 2005 and
the second session of the Remuneration Committee was established
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board on 13 November 2007.
Following the early termination of the respective terms of Mr. Fan Faming
and Mr. Huang Jiangming as an independent non-executive director on 10
June 2010, Mr. Fan Faming and Mr. Huang Jiangming have both ceased
as the members of the second session of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 10 June 2010. Pursuant to the Board Resolutions, the
third session of the Remuneration Committee which consists of Mr. Wang
Liping (an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the
chairman, and Mr. Wei Tingzhan (an executive director) and Mr. Chen
Liping (an independent non-executive director) were both appointed as
members, has been established for a three-year term commenced from

10 June 2010. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing

BRZBENHE(BERG2M  BERAEREK

SMSBGEBEFEGHS I DM T

Attendance/Number of meetings

ij%/é’%/ﬁl

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

ZERNATHBELRE ZER/BHRAT

R E-TFEANATAEZAEEZERETEH
ToOREH -

EREZERCEHN T ARERETN _T—FTF
FERE LRERERIMEZBMBEAEER

VEEEBIREE N R EREEE
BITTHH -

EHFMEES - BECEALE  BIRHEES
BOBYUEFERINR - —TF AT HIEAL
& SEEREE  BIREER T -FFEX
ATHETBECF _EFMHEZEENZE - R
BEERRSE NUTE-REFMHZES  T7
FEE(—ERBIFNTER)RZERTIE &
FEREL(—RBRWTES) KR FRE(—RBTL
FRTEF)RZEREZE  EHRE T Z
FRATHERB=F FHZESEERET
HBRARFHENKE  BHERARBENENZE

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &4 E

and determining the policy of the remuneration packages of all directors
by considering factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitments and complexity of duties and responsibilities of the
directors to ensure incentives are effectively implemented for all directors.
The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in

line with the provisions of the Code.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the second session of
the Remuneration Committee was held for discussing and considering
the performance based bonus of the Company’s directors and senior

management for 2009 with attendance in person as follows:

Mr. Wei Tingzhan* (chairman) HEREE(FE)

Mr. Fan Faming SBIARLAE
Mr. Huang Jiangming = LR%EE
* Mr. Wei Tingzhan was not involved in deciding his performance-based bonus

during the meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The first session of the nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
of the Company was established on 29 July 2005 and the second session
of the Nomination Committee was established pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Board on 13 November 2007 for a three-year term.
Following the early termination of the respective terms of Mr. Fan Faming
and Mr. Huang Jiangming as an independent non-executive director on 10
June 2010, Mr. Fan Faming and Mr. Huang Jiangming have both ceased
as the members of the second session of the Nomination Committee with
effect from 10 June 2010. Pursuant to the Board Resolutions, the third
session of the Nomination Committee which consists of Mr. Chen Liping
(an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the chairman,
and Mr. Wei Tingzhan (an executive director) and Mr. Wang Liping (an
independent non-executive director) were both appointed as members,
has been established for a three-year term commenced from 10 June
2010. The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential

candidates for directorships, reviewing the nomination of directors and
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making recommendations to the Board on such appointments. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in line with

the provisions of the Code.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the second session of the
Nomination Committee was held for discussing and recommending the
candidates to be proposed for re-election/appointment as directors of
the Company at the 2009 Annual General Meeting with attendance in

person is as follows:

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (chairman) HEREE(FE)
Mr. Fan Faming SBARRL A
Mr. Huang Jiangming = TREA

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Board Resolutions, the first session of the strategy
committee (the ‘Strategy Committee”) of the Company which consists
of three executive directors, namely Mr. Wei Tingzhan, Mr. Li Jianwen
and Ms. Li Chunyan, and two independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has been established for a
three-year term commenced from 10 June 2010. Mr. Wei Tingzhan was
appointed as the chairman. The main duties of the Strategy Committee
are to conduct research on the development strategy and consider the
strategic plans of the Company, and to make recommendations to the

Board for decision making on strategic development.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2009 Annual General
Meeting held on 10 June 2010, the respective terms of Ms. Qu Xinhua,
Mr. Yang Baoqun, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong as a
supervisor has been early terminated with effect from 10 June 2010. Mr.
Yang Baoqun has been re-elected as a supervisor and each of Mr. Chen
Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong, has been re-elected as an independent
supervisor for a three-year term with effect from 10 June 2010. Ms. Liu
Wenyu has been appointed as a new supervisor for a three-year term
with effect from 10 June 2010. Ms. Wang Shuying has resigned as a
staff-appointed supervisor with effect from 10 June 2010. Ms. Yao Jie
and Ms. Wang Hong have respectively been re-elected and appointed
as staff-appointed supervisors for a three-year term with effect from 10
June 2010. Accordingly, the supervisory committee (the “Supervisory
Committee”) of the Company currently consists of four shareholders-
appointed supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baogun, Mr. Chen Zhong
and Ms. Cheng Xianghong) and two staff-appointed supervisors (Ms. Yao
Jie and Ms. Wang Hong). Ms. Liu Wenyu serves as the chairman of the

Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulation compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing the

directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
Messrs. Ernst & Young as the external auditors of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2010. For the year ended 31 December 2010,
the Company agreed auditing fees of RMB1,750,000 payable to Messrs.
Ernst & Young. During the Reporting Period, the Company has also paid
RMB300,000 to Messrs. Ernst & Young for non-audit services in respect

of reviewing the Group’s 2008 interim financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable accounting

standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting

are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 64 to 65.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate system
of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ interest and the Group’s
assets. Regular reviews have been conducted by the Board for ensuring
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s internal systems in respect

of financial, operational and risk management areas.

The internal audit department of the Company has been established in
2009 providing independent assurance to the Board and management
by reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls of

the Group.
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GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to establish a long-term relationship with
shareholders and investors, adhere to the principles of integrity, regularity
and high transparency, and disclose the required information in compliance
with the Listing Rules. Information of the Group is disseminated to its

shareholders in the following manners:

- delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

- publication of announcements on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, and issue of shareholders’ circulars

in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

— arrange general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and

shareholders.

An extraordinary general meeting and class meetings of the H shareholders
and domestic shareholders were held on 4 May 2010 for considering
and approving, among other things, the A Share Issue and other related
matters. Details of these meetings were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement and circular dated 27 February 2010 and 19 March 2010,
respectively. All the special resolutions proposed at such meetings were

duly passed by way of poll.
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The 2009 annual general meeting was held on 10 June 2010 and details
of which were disclosed in the Company’s announcement and circular
dated 22 April 2010. All resolutions proposed at this meeting were duly
passed by way of poll.

The Company maintains effective communications with its shareholders,

investors and analysts through, inter alia:

- the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is responsible for

liaison with investors and analysts by answering their questions;

- engaging iPR Ogilvy Ltd., a professional public relations consultancy

firm to organize various investor relations programmes;

— arranging on-site visits to the retail outlets and logistics centers of
the Group to enhance their timely understanding of the situations

and latest development of the Group’s business operations;

—  gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and comments from analysts
and investors on the operation of the Group, and selectively adopting

them in the Group’s operation;

- making available information on the Company’s website.; and

- communicating actively with various parties, in particular, convening
briefing sessions, press conferences and individual meeting with
institutional investors upon the announcement of results and making
decisions on material investments. The Group also participates in a
range of investor activities and communicates on one-on-one basis

with its investors regularly.
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The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group at 31 December 2010 are set out in the

financial statements on pages 66 to 175.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB20.0
cents (2009: RMB18.0 cents) per share (tax inclusive) in respect of the
Reporting Period to shareholders on the register of members on the date
of the annual general meeting 2010. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits

within the equity section of the statement of financial position.

Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the
“Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese domestic
enterprise which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise shareholder
(i.e. legal person shareholder) in respect of accounting periods beginning
from 1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay enterprise income tax for
such shareholder. Since the Company is a H share listed company in
Hong Kong, the proposed 2010 final dividend of RMB20 cents per share

(tax inclusive) will be subject to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax Laws.
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In order to properly carry out the withholding and payment of income tax
on dividends to non-resident enterprise shareholders, the Company will
strictly abide by the law and identify those shareholders who are subject
to the withholding and payment of income tax based on the register of its
H shareholders as at 20 May 2011. In respect of all shareholders whose
names appear in the register of H shareholders kept at Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar
and Transfer Office in Hong Kong as at 20 May 2011 who are not
individuals (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate nominees or
trustees, and other entities or organizations that are all considered as
non-resident enterprise shareholders), the Company will distribute the
2010 final dividends after deducting income tax of 10%. The 10% income
tax will not be deducted from the 2010 final dividends payable to any
natural person shareholders whose names appear in the register of the
Company’s H shareholders kept at Computershare Hong Kong Investor

Services Limited as at 20 May 2011.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s

annual reports, is set out on page 176 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Company and the Group during the Reporting Period are

set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

RBEERAIFEREELRRBREWAINHFAF

MR NARERETERRELERR
TE-—FAA-THEARRBERNEOSME

BREHRBR - R—E——FHA -+ BRIIFER
RARRER B ZHEBRRBPEREETBHRE
HFELCARARNERAMOIFBEARR(BEE
BRRABERBA)ARAR - BEREBARE
EAREMRIEEREERROERIAER) - K
RAEIBIBF10%H FEHREZIKE —F—FTF R
BE AR -_B-——FAA - +RERKETH
REFBLARABDNRREMOERBEAAR

RR#E _ZE-ZFRYREB T THER10%AS
i o
MBERRE

BEARRFERSHAEE BT R EMKFEE
XS BE AENERENAFEREE176
H o

M BE - RERRENE

BREHRAN  FRARNRARRANEEZYE  BE -
RiBERIREWME 2 BB FIT D BN B RERM
1415 °

€S
BEMA - ARAWRARELES -

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 39



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS &£ & &

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period

and up to the date of this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 34(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution are set out in note 34(b)(ii)

to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings at the reporting date are set out in

note 30 to the financial statements.
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SHORT-TERM DEBENTURES

During the Reporting Period, in order to raise working capital and reduce
financial costs of the Group, the Company issued short-term debentures
with a face value of RMB300 million and RMB200 million on 28 July 2010
and 15 September 2010, respectively, with a maturity period of one year,
which were registered at and approved by the National Association of
Financial Market Institutional Investor of PRC. The short-term debentures
are interest-bearing at 3.4% and 3.6% per annum and issued through

the Bank of Beijing Company Limited.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the interest capitalized amounted to

RMB712,000 (2009: RMB992,000)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 19.3% (2009: 19.5%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately
5.4% (2009: 6.6%). Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 15.8% (2009: 14.2%) of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for

approximately 4.5% (2097: 3.8%) during the Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of its
associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS EEKE=S

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting #H&EHRREEAFRETE A ARAGESER
Period and up to the date of this report are as follows: EEEMT

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jianwen

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Liu Yuejin

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gu Hanlin
Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Fan Faming (resigned on 10 June 2010)

Mr. Huang Jiangming (resigned on 10 June 2010)
Mr. Chung Chi Kong (resigned on 10 June 2010)
Mr. Choi Onward (appointed on 10 June 2010)
Mr. Chen Liping (appointed on 10 June 2010)

Mr. Wang Liping (appointed on 10 June 2010)

Supervisors:

Ms. Qu Xinhua (resigned on 10 June 2010)
Ms. Wang Shuying (resigned on 10 June 2010)
Ms. Yao Jie

Mr. Yang Baoqun

Mr. Chen Zhong

Ms. Cheng Xianghong

Ms. Liu Wenyu (appointed on 10 June 2010)
Ms. Wang Hong (appointed on 10 June 2010)

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence

from each of independent non-executive directors and is of the view that

they are independent.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
PROFILES

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of the

Company are set out on pages 58 to 63 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of the re-
elected executive directors pursuant to which they have agreed to act
as executive directors for a three-year term with effect from 10 June
2010 after their re-election as the executive directors at the 2009 annual
general meeting held on 10 June 2010. Each of the re-elected executive
directors, Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin (other than
the chairman of the Board, Mr. Wei Tingzhan) will not receive a director’s
fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on his/her executive duties
and responsibilities (other than being a director) in the Company which
comprises of a fixed basic salary, a performance based bonus which
is determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results
and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law
and regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salary for each of
the forthcoming three-year term shall be reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Company and subject to the Board’s approval. Mr. Wei
Tingzhan, the chairman of the Board is entitled to an annual salary of
RMB700,000, and a performance based bonus which is determined by
reference to the Company’s annual financial results (will be submitted to the
annual general meeting for shareholders’ approval) and other allowance

and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and regulations.

Each of the re-elected non-executive directors, Mr. Gu Hanlin and Mr.
Li Shunxiang, has entered into an appointment letter with the Company
pursuant to which they have agreed to act as non-executive directors
for a three-year term with effect from 10 June 2010 after their re-election
as non-executive directors at the 2009 annual general meeting held on

10 June 2010. They do not receive any remuneration.
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Each of the independent non-executive directors newly appointed at the
2009 annual general meeting held on 10 June 2010 has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a three-year term with effect from
10 June 2010. The terms of their service contracts are identical in all
material respects and they are entitled to receive fixed directors’ fees.
The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is RMB154,758 per annum (tax
inclusive) and is RMB35,400 per annum (after tax) for each of Mr. Wang

Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.

Each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms.
Cheng Xianghong who was re-elected/newly appointed at the annual
general meeting held on 10 June 2010 has entered into a service contract
or an appointment letter with the Company pursuant to which each has
agreed to act as a supervisor for a three-year term with effect from 10
June 2010. Each of Ms. Yao Jie (re-elected staff-appointed supervisor)
and Ms. Wang Hong (newly staff-appointed supervisor) has entered
into a service contract with the Company pursuant to which each has
agreed to act as a supervisor for a three-year term with effect from 10
June 2010. The terms of the service contracts or appointment letter are

identical in all material respects save that:

i Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

i.  each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong receives a fixed

supervisor’s fee of RMB30,066 per annum (after tax);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Wang Hong and Ms. Yao Jie is entitled
to remuneration based on her executive duties and responsibilities
(other than being a supervisor) in the Company which comprises of a
fixed basic salary, a performance based bonus which is determined
by reference to the Company’s annual financial results and other
allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and

regulations.

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or is proposed
to enter into, any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. The Company has established
a remuneration committee to formulate compensation policies and to
determine and manage the compensation of the Company’s senior
management. Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are

disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’
CONTRACTS

AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN

None of the directors and supervisors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its controlling shareholder, or any of

its subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN ACQUIRING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors or their
respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors and supervisors to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.
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EXeRBEESREFNRE B CRERR
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and positions of the directors,
supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Total number of

EE ESRIRTHRAESRKRG - HER
R ERER TR

)
)

B

AIRHE
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TR8DBAMEARR
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FWE
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SHARECE

EFRIDNRE - AMEARR T MBS K
BT
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Approximate
percentage

Approximate

of total issued percentage of

Name Capacity domestic shares held domestic shares total issued shares
HERITRER HEBITERAK
A 514 FHFENRERRE BMAED BHRED
(%) (%)
Wei Tingzhan Personal 1,417,237 0.62 0.34
=8 & A
Li Jianwen Personal 1,354,712 0.59 0.33
FEX (EPN
Li Chunyan Personal 395,992 0.17 0.10
FEK & A
Liu Yuejin Personal 375,151 0.16 0.09
Eilliz31:3 A
Gu Hanlin Personal 1,062,937 0.46 0.26
FEIZM & A
Li Shunxiang Personal 5,210,428 2.26 1.26
ZEkE & A
Yang Baogqun Personal 1,042,086 0.45 0.25
BB A
Liu Wenyu Personal 265,151 0.12 0.06
21305 (EPN
Yao Jie Personal 125,051 0.05 0.08
ok iE B A
Wang Hong Personal 82,525 0.04 0.02
Far A

46 | 201068 It RRERHEERMBRHBR AR



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS &£ & &

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of their associates
had any interest and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2010, so far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than a director,
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or
taken to have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:
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Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name Capacity

=L 3

Beneficial owner
En#EAA

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary
Food Company
BB L CUNG|

Positions in the H shares of the Company

Name

# T

JP Morgan Chase & Co. (Note 1) (Ff&E1)

Value Partners Limited (Note 2) (Hf#t2)

Value Partners Group Limited (Note 3) (Ff&E3)
Cheah Capital Management Limited (Note 4) (Fff3E4)
Cheah Company Limited (note 5) (Kt:t5)

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International
Limited (note 6) (Ffi#£6)

Cheah Cheng Hye (note 7) (Ff3£7)
To Hau Yin (note 8) (Kt318)

Schroder Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited (note 9) (Ffi5£9)

Templeton Asset Management Ltd. (note 10) (Ffz£10)
Genesis Asset Managers, LLP (note 11) (Fff5E11)

Commonwealth Bank of Australia (note 12) (Mf5E12)

(L) - Long Position
(P) - Lending Pool
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Total number of
domestic shares held

KRBARNERZEFR

Approximate
percentage
of total issued

domestic shares

HERITRER

Fir 576 A PO 2 R B BOE D

(%)

167,409,808 72.77
RARFHRZERE

Total number of

H shares held

P A HIHAR AR ER

36,698,000 (L)
19,638,000 (P)

29,342,000 (L)
29,342,000 (L)
29,342,000 (L)
29,342,000 (L)

29,342,000 (L)

29,342,000 (L)
29,342,000 (L)

13,036,000 (L)

12,915,000 (L)
12,749,000 (L)

12,730,000 (L)

I

Approximate

percentage of
total issued H shares

HEEITHIR
WAt
(%)

20.15
10.78

16.11
16.11
16.11
16.11

16.11

16.11
16.11

7.16

7.09
7.00

6.99

A e )

Approximate
percentage of

total issued shares

HEBRTRRAE
OB
(%)

40.61

Approximate
percentage of

total issued shares

BT
BH A
(%)

8.90
4.76

7.12
712
712
7.12

712

712
712

3.16

3.13
3.09

3.09
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Notes:

10.

11.

These 36,698,000 H shares were held by JP Morgan Chase & Co. of which
19,638,000 H shares were in its capacity as a custodian corporation/an
approved lending agent and the other 17,060,000 H shares were in its

capacity as an investment manager.

These 29,342,000 H shares were held by Value Partners Limited in its capacity

as an investment manager.

Value Partners Group Limited had a 100% direct interest in Value Partners
Limited and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the 29,342,000 H

shares in which Value Partners Limited was interested.

Cheah Capital Management Limited had a 31.19% deemed interest in Value
Partners Group Limited and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the

29,342,000 H shares in which Value Partners Limited was interested.

Cheah Company Limited had a 100% deemed interest in Cheah Capital
Management Limited and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the

29,342,000 H shares in which Value Partners Limited was interested.

These 29,342,000 H shares were held by Hang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited in its capacity as a trustee.

These 29,342,000 H shares were held by Cheah Cheng Hye in the capacity

as the founder of a discretionary trust.

These 29,342,000 H shares were held by To Hau Yin in the capacity as the
spouse of Cheah Cheng Hye.

These 13,036,000 H shares were held by Schroder Investment Management

(Hong Kong) Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.

These 12,915,000 H shares were held by Templeton Asset Management

Ltd. in its capacity as an investment manager.

These 12,749,000 H shares were held by Genesis Asset Managers, LLP in

its capacity as an investment manager.
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Itk %36,698,0000%HA% A JP Morgan Chase & Co.
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Itk 29,342,000/ HA% FaValue Partners LimitedA
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Value Partners Group Limited& # # & Value
Partners Limited100%#)# 2 + Eut KR AR
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Cheah Capital Management Limited# 18 & # &
Value Partners Group Limited 31.19%#) # %5
It #% 48 A& MValue Partners Limitedff # & &)
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Cheah Company Limited#4% #+5 4 Cheah Capital
Management Limited 100%M#ES Bt » EAR
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12. Commonwealth Bank of Australia had a 100% deemed interest in a
corporation holding the 12,730,000 H shares and was therefore deemed to

have an interest in the 12,730,000 H shares.

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2010, no other
persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 12 January 2010, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire
the 20% equity interest of Jingkelong Langfang from China Fortune
Land Development Co., Ltd., the minority shareholder of Jingkelong
Langfang, at a consideration of RMB5,980,000. After the acquisition,
Jingkelong Langfang became wholly owned by the Company. Details of
the said acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcement dated

12 January 2010.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into the following

continuing connected transactions:

FERERS

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
1. Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary HERIRMEEMETALAF]
to the Company (not including 4 below) (TBRETNME4E)
(note 1) (FfH5E1) 7,503 7,486
2. Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary e RMEAEMETHIEE
to Chaopi Trading (note 2) (PfFsE2) 985 985
3. Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary i EIRMAEME TR
to Xinyang Tongli (note 3) (PfF5E3) 17 16
4. Lease of a property by Chaoyang Auxiliary HERAEMN ST LFHE
to the Company in 2007 (note 4) METARA(FIFE4) 1,896 1,896
5. Lease of a property by Tengyuan Xingye fEIREEN —F FHE
to the Company in 2007 (note 5) METARR(FIFES) 2,100 2,100

All the above continuing connected transactions are also reported
as related party transactions as disclosed in note 40 to the financial

statements

Notes:

1. Pursuant to the three lease agreements, the three supplemental lease
agreements, a confirmation letter and a memorandum entered into between
the Company and Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang
Auxiliary”) during the period from 30 April 2004 to 12 August 2008, Chaoyang
Auxiliary agreed to lease to the Company certain properties (referred to as
the “JKL Properties” on page 110 of the introduction document dated 29
June 2007 in connection with the Main Board Migration (the “Introduction
Document”)) for terms of between 10 years to 20 years commencing on 1
January 2004, 1 July 2005 and 1 July 2006 (as the case may be) with fixed
annual rentals (inclusive of the relevant business and property taxes) for four
to six year periods (as the case may be). The rental is paid in advance on

a quarterly or half-yearly basis (as the case may be).

Chaoyang Auxiliary is the controlling shareholder of the Company which
owns approximately 40.61% of the issued share capital of the Company,

and is also one of the promoters of the Company.
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The aggregate rental was RMB7,5083,860 for the year ended 31 December
2010, and ranging from RMB7,089,135 to RMB8,135,010 per annum during
the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2023.

All the leased properties (with a total gross area of approximately 86,766
sq.m) are located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing and are principally used
by the Company to operate 14 supermarkets, 27 convenience stores and

the live and fresh produce logistics centre.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 30 April 2004 and a supplemental
lease agreement dated 25 July 2005 entered into between Chaoyang Auxiliary
and Chaopi Trading, Chaoyang Auxiliary agreed to lease to Chaopi Trading
certain properties (referred to as the “Chaopi Properties” on page 122 of the
Introduction Document) for a term of 20 years commencing on 1 January
2004 with a fixed annual rental (inclusive of the relevant business and property
taxes) for each five year period. On 28 August 2007, Chaoyang Auxiliary
and Chaopi Trading entered into another supplemental lease agreement for
ceasing to rent the property numbered 106 on page 374 of the Introduction
Document from 1 July 2007. The rental is paid in advance on a half-yearly

basis.

The aggregate rental was RMB984,689 for the year ended 31 December
2010, and ranging from RMB984,689 to RMB1,069,546 per annum during
the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2023.

All the leased properties are located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing for
office and warehouse uses with a total gross area of approximately 12,271

sq.m.

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 1 July 2004 and a supplemental lease
agreement dated 25 July 2005 entered into between Chaoyang Auxiliary
and Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilities Company Limited (“Xinyang
Tongli”), Chaoyang Auxiliary agreed to lease to Xinyang Tongli certain property
(referred to as the “Xinyang Property” on page 123 of the Introduction
Document) for a term of 20 years commencing on 1 January 2004 with a
fixed annual rental (inclusive of the relevant business and property taxes) for

each five year period. The rental is paid in advance on a half-yearly basis.
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Xinyang Tongli is an approximately 52.03% held subsidiary of the

Company.

The aggregate rental was RMB16,931 for the year ended 31 December
2010, and ranging from RMB16,931 to RMB18,383 per annum during the
period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2023.

The leased property is located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing for commercial,
office, warehouse and industrial uses, with a total gross area of approximately
1,362 sg.m.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 15 November 2007 entered
into between the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary, Chaoyang Auxiliary
agreed to lease to the Company a property for a term of 16 years and 9
months commencing on 1 April 2007. The rental was RMB1,895,690 for
the year ended 31 December 2010, and ranging from RMB1,081,064 to
RMB2,120,564 per annum during the period from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2023. The rental is payable in advance on a half-yearly basis.

The leased property is located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing with a total
gross area of approximately 6,800 sg.m. and are principally used by the

Company to operate a hypermarket.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 2 July 2007 entered into between the
Company and Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Automobile Service Company Limited
(“Tengyuan Xingye”), a subsidiary of Chaoyang Auxiliary, Tengyuan Xingye
agreed to lease to the Company a property for a term of 15 years commencing
on 1 April 2007. The rental was RMB2,100,000 for the year ended 31
December 2010, and ranging from RMB2,100,000 to RMB2,425,500 per
annum during the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 March 2022. The rental

is payable in advance on a half-yearly basis.

The leased property is located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing with a total
gross area of approximately 7,300 sq.m. and are principally used by the

Company as office, staff canteen and quarter.

In connection with each of the continuing connected transactions for items
1 to 8 (on an aggregated basis), the directors estimate that the annual
caps for each of the three years ending 31 December 2011 will exceed
0.1% but less than 2.5%, of the applicable percentage ratios under Rule
14A.34(1) of the then Listing Rules, the Company is subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements. An announcement has been made on 27
October 2008.

5.

TRFZ38 7 178 X R FS B 4952.03% RO Ff /& 12 7]

BE_T-THE+ A=+ -ALFEHRLLER
ARK16931L A=F——F—A—-HE-F
=FE+tZ AT RHRRSRETHSYRESF
HEAARK16931TTERE ARK18,3837T °

A AR R TEGE - HiEmE - HA
= -RERI¥MAZ  BEEHA1,362FHK

BEAQTAFGIRMN -ZTZTLF+—A+H
BEEZENHESHE  FBRRRAEK—EYEMR
FAQR HHE-TTLFNA—ARAHTA
FENER -HE-T-TF+-_A=+—8BLF
EfEBEAARE1805600T BT ——F
—A—HBEZ-_=F+-A=+—HHHEFA
+ 8 AR1,081,0647T £ A R 152,120,564 7T T
F o MeTYFIRATUZM -

ZHEEWEMRIE R TS E - BEIEL R6,800

TR BARRRERESEE -
BEARRNR_ZTLFLA-HEABIRMN

BB A mldE R R E S B RIS AR A R ([ iR #
¥ NEENDERERH  BERERNEK KD
%ﬁ%$“ﬁ'ﬁ%5:§§t¢mﬁ—aﬂ%%
THF -HE_Z-TF+_A=1+—HILFEHA
i%%ﬁAEMMWW%ﬁ’E:ﬁffifﬂ
—AZE-E-F=-A=+ A HHRSREER
+HHBFHEE R ARE2,100,0007T 8 E ARE
2,425,5007T ° &M & F¥FIRA TUZHA -

%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁ%%ﬁ’@ﬁ%%ﬁ?%O

FHAK - AARBBERA RENERA
ARFIZFER(NEHAEREE)NE AR

BHERS  EFEE REE_T——F+=A
E+—HBUE=EFANE—F  HFE FRRE LT
FRAM4A34(1)ER M B 9 L XA B B0.1% I ER
2.5% @ ARAFALFTETRERASER - AR
HEERZZTNF+A L HEL -

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 53



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS &£ & &

54

With respect to the continuing connected transactions of items 4 and 5, the
lease agreements were entered into before the Main Board Migration and
have compiled with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the
then GEM Listing Rules.

With the amendments to the Listing Rules which came into effect on 3 June
2010, the continuing transactions between the Group and the promoters
(and their associates) of the Company and two of its non wholly-owned
subsidiaries (Chaopi Flavourings and Chaopi Jinglong) are no longer regarded
as continuing connected transactions of the Group under Chapter 14A of the
amended Listing Rules since 3 June 2010. Further details were disclosed in

the Company’s announcement dated 20 October 2010.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) have
reviewed all the above continuing connected transactions during the
Reporting Period and confirmed that the continuing connected transactions

have been entered into:

a. in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

b. on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Group than those available to or

from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

c. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders

of the Company as a whole.
The Board has received a letter from the external auditors in relation to the
agreed upon procedures performed on the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that these continuing connected transactions:

a. have been approved by the Board;

b. have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the respective

agreements governing the transactions; and

c. items 1 to 3 have not exceeded their respective annual caps as

disclosed in the announcement dated 27 October 2008..

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS &£ & &

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements of the

Listing Rules from 1 January 2010 and up to the date of this report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, or had any

other conflict of interests with the Group during the Reporting Period.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young, who retired
and being eligible for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting

for their re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Wei Tingzhan

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
18 March 2011
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

ERSHE

To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee of
the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles of
honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and obligations
cautiously and diligently in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, the relevant laws and requirements of the PRC and Hong

Kong for their accountability to the shareholders and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the major work performed by the Supervisory
Committee included the attendance of Board meetings; inspection of
resolutions made by the Board, review of internal control system, strict
and effective monitoring of whether the policies and decisions made by the
management of the Company had confirmed with the relevant laws and
regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association, safeguarding the
interest of the Company and shareholders. The Supervisory Committee has
also reviewed the performance of the directors and senior management
in their daily operation activities by various means, and examined the
Group’s financial affairs and connected transactions. As a result of our

work, the Supervisory Committee concluded that:

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance with
the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate internal
control system has been established. The directors and senior
management observed their fiduciary duties and worked diligently
and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not aware of any breach
of the relevant laws and regulations and the Company’s Articles of
Association or against the interests of shareholders by the directors

and senior management of the Company.

2. The Company’s 2010 financial statements reflected a true and fair
view of the financial position and operating results of the Group in
material aspects. The unqualified opinion expressed in the auditors’

report issued by Ernst & Young is objective and fair.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE Bs =& ifsE

3. All continuing connected transactions and connected transaction
conducted in the Reporting Period between the Group and its
connected persons were in the ordinary course of business and no
act that prejudiced the interests of the Company and shareholders

has been found.

4. The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the Reporting

Period.

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports of
the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory Committee

during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
Liu Wenyu

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
18 March 2011
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
5 EFhERAEEEEN

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Tingzhan, aged 57, a senior economist, is the Chairman of
the Board and an executive director. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Wei
was the general manager of Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Company
Limited (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”). From 1994 to 2002, he was the general
manager of Beijing Jingkelong Shang Sha (“Jingkelong Shang Sha”), the
predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Group Company
Limited (“Jingkelong Supermarket”) (the predecessor of the Company).
He was the managing director of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to
2004. Since November 2004, he has been the Chairman of the Board.
In December 2008, he was honoured with the title of “Outstanding figure
of Chinese commerce & service industry during the 30 years of reform
and opening-up (‘FEIRERGEXEFHM = TEAFEBAY) by the
China General Chamber of Commerce and China Business Herald. He
was elected as a representative of the 13th Session of the People’s

Congress of Beijing in 2008.

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 50, is the General Manager of the Company and
an executive director. He worked in Jingkelong Shang Sha as the deputy
general manager from 1998 to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket.
He has been the managing director of the Company since November
2004. He is also a director of Chaopi Trading, an approximately 79.85%

directly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 38, is an executive director. Ms. Li obtained
a bachelor’'s degree and subsequently a master’s degree in private
international law from China University of Politics & Law of China. She
was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of Jingkelong Shang Sha from
2001 to 2002. In addition, she was the Officer of the Bureau of Law
and the Secretary to the board of directors of Jingkelong Supermarket
from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004, she has been one of the
executive directors of the Company. She has been appointed as the
Company’s Chief Financial Officer and deputy general manager since

29 December 2008.

58 | 201053k t R R EEHEEEBRHBRAF

E=x

BITES
EEBEALE RFoTHm SMEER ARQF
ZEERRBTESZT - R AN—FE- AW
F o FEEERBRERRELE R IEFERE
—FEF fIERREERERE(REERE ]
BREERFEERERLLARTEEMEHERS
RAR(REEBMDZAS  REEBWAR
RAIZAE)  RZEZEZFE_TTNF - R
FEBTESELE B _ETNF+—ARESR
NRAEER - FHEERZZTTNFTZAH+TEH
BEMASETERRI/TEREREENE
RAR=1TRAFEBEAY HEER _TTN\FE
BRIERTET=ZEARREREREK -

FRENAE - BFS08% - ARD A ZBEE RAT
BEE-R-—NNWNFEE_TT_F FTEAEFE
TREEBERELE  RZTTE_FE_ZTNH
FAIRERBMESRBEELE  A-TTHF
T-RAREAAREFTELE - ThENETH
HEE (KRR EEFRLD79.85%M I ERE) 2
-

THRKLZLT REBE - ARFZHTES - F
TTEFRBEANBE BN R ERELEE T2
(- RZFT—FEZETT_F FTLITHERE
EEEZENAZEEM  RZTEE_FE_TTW
F - AREEBTAIARNAZTFERESTSNE
BEZZTMF+—ABERRRNITEE - TL
TE_EEN\F+ A+ NLBRERIARAHE
BE ARBIALIE -
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Mr. Liu Yuejin, aged 51, is an executive director. From 2000 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Jingkelong Langfang. Between 2002 and
2004, he was one of the directors of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since
November 2004, he has been an executive director of the Company.
From 2005 to 2009, Mr. Liu had held various positions in the Company,
including the manager of the First Operation Division, the manager
of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Centre and the manager of
the Operation Division of Shopping Centre. Since 2009, he has been

the manager of the First Operation Division of Supermarkets of the

Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gu Hanlin, aged 58, is a non-executive director. From 2002 to
2004, he was a chairman of the Board of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since
May 2004, he has been the general manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary.
Since November 2004, he has been a non-executive director of the

Company.

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 58, is a non-executive director. From 2000 to
present, he is the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian Construction
Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-executive director
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004, he has been a non-

executive director of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 54, is an independent non-executive director. Mr.
Wang obtained a master’s degree in Economics and a PhD in Management
from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004, respectively. He
is currently the professor and doctorial supervisor at the Institute of
Business Organisation and the faculty of Human Resources Management
at Renmin University of China. He has also been an independent non-
executive director of China Haisum Engineering Co., Ltd. (FE&EH T
FRRERED ABR A 7)) since April 2009, which is listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Since 10 June 2010, he has been an independent

non-executive director.
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Mr. Chen Liping, aged 50, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation from Aichi
University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from Circulation
University of Economics of Japan in 2008. He is currently the Head,
associate professor and master supervisor of the faculty of Marketing in
the Institute of Business Management at Capital University of Economics
and Business of China. Since 10 June 2010, he has been an independent

non-executive director.

Mr. Choi Onward, aged 40, is an independent non-executive director. Mr.
Choi obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy with honors from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1993. He is a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow
member of the CPA Australia, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a registered practising Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He is currently the Acting Chief Financial
Officer of NetEase.com, Inc, a NASDAQ-listed and a China-based internet
technology company, a position he has been holding since July 2007.
He has also been an independent non-executive director of China ITS
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. since September 2008. He has served as the Financial
Controller and Corporate Finance Director, respectively of NetEase.com,
Inc. from November 2003 to June 2007. During August 2000 to August
2003, he worked as a senior manager of the Assurance and Advisory
Business Services Department in Ernst & Young (Beijing). Since 10 June

2010, he has been an independent non-executive director.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 39 is the chairman of the Company’s supervisory
committee. During the period from 1999 to 2008, Ms. Liu has been
appointed as the vice-chairman of the labour union of Chaoyang Auxiliary,
the deputy manager of the First Operation Division and the officer of the
Office of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Center coordination team
of the Company. Since October 2008, she has been the chairman of the
labour union of the Company. Since 10 June 2010, she has been the

chairman of the Company’s supervisory committee.
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Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 58, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 47, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. Chen
obtained his doctorate from Peking University in 1989. He is currently the
Head of the Advanced Financial Information Research Centre at Peking
University. Since June 2002 to July 2010, he had been a professor and the
Head of the School of Software and Microelectronics, Peking University.

Since January 2005, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Cheng Xianghong, aged 39, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms.
Cheng obtained her bachelor’s degree from Renmin University of China.
She is a qualified accountant, certified public valuer and registered tax
agent. She had previously worked in Beijing Ding Xin Li accounting firm.
She has been the deputy general manager and financial controller of
Beijing Zzhongguancun City Construction Company since December 2003.

Since January 2005, she has been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 40, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Wang is
a senior economist. She worked in Beijing Ruida Frozen Foods Company
Limited for about nine years and was appointed as the assistant to
general manager before joining the Company. Since September 2003 to
July 2009, she had been appointed as the deputy officer of the Office
of Managers and the purchase manager of the In-house Brand Division
of Purchase Center. Since July 2009, she has been the manager of the
Marketing Department of the Company. Since June 2010, she has been

elected as a staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Yao Jie, aged 48, is a supervisor of the Company. From 2002 to
2004, she was the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004 to July 2009, she
has been the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department of the
Company. Since July 2009, she has been the officer of the Manager Office
of the Company. Since November 2007, she has been a staff-appointed

supervisor of the Company.

BEELE RE8K - ARBIzEFE - B_F
EOFE_TTNFHE BALEEERTER
TEE: B _TTWF+—- AR EEXRRAE
=

REXE  HF47T5 ARFZESE - REER
—NNANFEIERAREE LB - RELREIL
RARBLREBEMETLELE AZTTFRX
RE-Z-—2F4+ R £RAREHEHEUEF
BRI Rk BZZZRF AR ZEEFRQ
AlEEE °

BEAZL RER - ARBI2EE - BLL
EHBEARKSE LM - M EEHAD - EME
R4l B M R M A A A o R £ BERR AL R
Vg EBR BT =F T - ARELR
HEANEFRRERARAFEIBLIERIBRE
B-ZTTRE AR EEARFES-

Tzt BF405 ARBAZEE SHLE
fh e TRETERIERBERRMAR A AIER
NE - MARRRZ AIMEZ A RIAALIZENIE - 5=
TEE=FNAZE_FTTNEFLA  RERERRF]
RERNERNTE  BEREHRBELE: =%
TNFLAZS  AMSEHEBEE 8 -F—F
FRAR  BEARFBIAKRES -

hiEL Lt REA8K - ARBIZEE - R _EE
TEETTNF - A LERTERETANE
REBIELE  B-REMNE+—AE T -ZTF L
A ERRRANERBRIEE BT —TFL
A EARRAKERAZEEE B -TTNF+
—HR - BEEARRBIAKRES -

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 61



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT # %= »

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gao Jingsheng, aged 56. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Gao was the
assistant general manager of Jingkelong Shang Sha. From 1999 to
2002, he was the assistant general manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary.
From 2002 to 2004, he was the assistant general manager of Jingkelong
Supermarket. He has been the assistant general manager of the Company

since November 2004.

Mr. Zhao Weili, aged 58. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Zhao was the assistant
general manager of Jingkelong Shang Sha. From 1999 to 2002, he was
the assistant general manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary. From 2002 to
2004, he was the assistant general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket.
He has been the assistant general manager of the Company since

November 2004.

Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 47. Mr. Li acted as the manager of several retail
outlets of the Company from 1997 to 2007. From 2007 to 2009, he was
the manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets and the assistant
to the manager of the Company. Since August 2009, he has been the

assistant general manager of the Company.

Mr. Keung Siu Fai, From February 2005 to 14 February 2011, Mr. Keung
was the financial controller, the qualified accountant and one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company. Mr. Keung passed away because

of illness on 14 February 2011.
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Mr. Li Bo ' aged 32 ' is the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with a
bachelor's degree of economics in 2001 and obtained a master degree
of accounting from Macquarie University of Australia in 2004. Mr. Li is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Certified Practising Accountant of Australia. Mr. Li served as an auditor
in Deloitte Beijing office from December 2004 to July 2007.He served
as an senior auditor in the Audit office of New South Wales in Australia
from August 2007 to September 2010 and served in Sinolink securities
as a project manager from September 2010 to March 2011. He also
serves as an Independent director in Beijing Origin Water company ( a
company listed in Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Li joined the Company

on 18 March 2011.

FTERLE RERHR - BREEAARARAME -
BR-_ZE-FEENEHEEEHIRE  BEE
BELTEM - YR _TTROFEBRMNEZ R AP
SHEELEL - RRBESFHMAETEE R
MNEtrges  -FEEA -_TTONF+-A
E-TTLFLA ERPESAMEBHMILRD
FREERGM - B _ETLFLAZE T —ZF
NA ERANEFEEBLIMNBEEAEES
MBEEE - —_T-EFNAE-_T——F=A1"
EREFARERTHETAEBLE - FEAER
—ETEFRNAES TREELERZBKRER AR
MERRB(—KRPBERNZZ A LETHARR)
MWBUES  FEER_ZT——F=A+/\HAM
ARRE e

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 63



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 74

Ernst & Young
18th Floor

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=7 ik

8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

To the shareholders of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited
(A joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic

of China)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 66 to 175, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
Internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT &3/ 1% 28Rl # 5

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT & {4

Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ-—FE—FF+-H=+—HI-FE

3 N/
B3

2010 2009
—E-ZEF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARETR AREFIT
REVENUE A 5 7,438,729 6,691,036
Cost of sales SHERA (6,397,472) (5,759,316)
Gross profit EF 1,041,257 931,720
Other income and gains E A R e 5 495,442 423,709
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko SR A (880,270) (744,743)
Administrative expenses THAX (213,020) (226,943)
Other expenses A (44,458) (45,069)
Finance costs B E A 6 (93,940) (85,109)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRE AT A 7 305,011 253,565
Income tax expense Fr5 & X 10 (76,510) (65,049)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEF 228,501 188,516
Attributable to: FE1h
Owners of the parent [SYNSIESY-DN 13 180,502 147,783
Non-controlling interests SIS 47,999 40,733
228,501 188,516
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE & A BEERIEAE A
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EEERER
OF THE PARENT
Basic (RMB) EAR(ARE) 13 43.8 cents 35.9 cents

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed ~AFEEMKREREZRE ZFIBEER TR

in note 12 to the financial statements. FKHFE12 ©

06 | 20105k tRREEHEEERHERAA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & #f & E#Ezm

Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ-—E—FF+-H=+—HIFFE

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETRT AREFIT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEBF 228,501 188,516
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hibh2muzs
Available-for-sale investments: Al HERARE ¢
Changes in fair value ~RaEBEEE 2,560 3,208
Income tax effect st & (640) (986)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FERHEMEEKE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BREFEE 20(a) 1,920 2,222
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FERZEKZEEE
FOR THE YEAR 230,421 190,738
Attributable to: FEBR
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEEFSPN 182,422 150,005
Non-controlling interests FEFE HI I RE 2 47,999 40,733
230,421 190,738

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 67



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & §f 81 %R 5L 5%

31 December 2010 R=—ZFE—ZFF+-F=+—H

2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARETR AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 14 1,839,832 1,666,608
Investment properties LEYE 15 7,326 7,793
Prepaid land lease payments T EFE R 16 85,817 88,271
Goodwill EE 17 90,204 -
Intangible assets mEAE 18 11,055 7,330
Available-for-sale investments A ERARE 20 48,853 4,293
Deferred tax assets REFRIAE E 32 12,172 =
Other long term lease prepayments HEMREHABEEENR 21 58,157 64,532
Total non-current assets IEREE EMEAT 2,153,416 1,838,827
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 997,356 785,251
Trade receivables B U BR TR 23 1,185,689 1,198,390
Prepayments, deposits and AR Ze Rk
other receivables H b U R 24 542,034 430,566
Loan receivable JEUWE 25 50,000 50,000
Pledged deposits [ EiER 26 21,966 51,999
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 26 574,532 413,811
Total current assets MENVE EEARGT 3,371,577 2,930,017
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables RN B 27 1,065,512 1,031,207
Debentures &% 28 498,733 -
Tax payable FESRIE 17,198 50,005
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNGRKRIERE R 29 597,817 544,630
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings  Ff B8R 1TE 7k & B Ath & 5% 30 1,185,000 1,575,980
Deferred income — current portion BEEWA — REFER 31 1,216 910
Total current liabilities mEBB AR 3,365,476 3,202,732
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE(AR)FE 6,101 (272,715)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERREBEME
LIABILITIES 2,159,517 1,566,112

08 | 201053k R RBEREEEEBRHBRAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & §f 81 %Ak 5L 5%

31 December 2010 R=—FE—FF+-F=+—H

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR®T ARETTT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBDAER
LIABILITIES 2,159,517 1,566,112
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings M B 8877 E 3k 2 EAbfE 5k 30 430,000 6,000
Deferred income PRIEUA 31 2,398 2,665
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFITEEE 32 12,286 11,671
Other liabilities HEmaE 10,075 8,900
Total non-current liabilities IERB B ELRE 454,759 29,236
Net assets FAE 1,704,758 1,536,876
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners BARFEA
of the parent i3 &N
Issued capital BT 33 412,220 412,220
Reserves (G 34(a) 997,895 902,038
Proposed final dividend ¥R AR EAR S 12 82,444 74,200
1,492,559 1,388,458
Non-controlling interests FEEFIM R 212,199 148,418
Total equity RALE(E 1,704,758 1,536,876
Wei Tingzhan Li Chunyan
EEE EHEM
Director Director
= BEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY & ff#

Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ-—FE—FF+-H=+—HI-FE

Attributable to owners of the parent

HE N/ g

Z X manm

I s

)P

BERSATHEA
Available-
for-sale
Share investment  Statutory  Proposed Non-
Issued  premium Capital  revaluation surplus final  Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve  dividend profits Total interests equity
AfEE
BEf REER EERH  RRAH FEHE
Bx BAEEE  EAEE BE  DRe ke RERH gt Bi Ena
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
WE  ARETr ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETr ARETn ARETT ARETR
(note 34(0)()
(HE34)n)
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-H 412,220 605,171 5,121 735 79,687 86,566 135519 1325019 163597 1,488,616
Proft for the year EEH - - - - - © W8 47783 40733 188516
Other comprehensive income for - S EM2ENE :
the year:
Changes in fair value of A ERARE
avallable-for-sale investments, ~ A#EEZE -
net of tax RS - - - 2,002 - - - 200 - 222
Totel comprehensive income ~~ FERENE
for the year Mﬁ - - - 2,222 - - 147,783 150,005 40,733 190,738
2008 dividend declared EE-% \ﬁr e = = = = = (86,566) = (86,566) - (86,566)
Dividends paid to Bt WW iz 4o
non-controling equity holders B &ERS - - - - - - = - (499%) 49932
Acquistion of non-controling ~ WEBSER IR
interests - - - - - - - - (5,980) (5,980)
Proposed final 2009 dividend ~ BE-SSAERERE 12 = = = = - TA0 (74200 - - =
Transfer from retained profis ~ R&:E ﬂﬁﬂ% - - - - 16469 - (16,469) - - -
At 31 December 2009 RZBTNE+=A=1-R 442220 605,171* 5,121 2,957* 96,156 74200 192,633 1388458 148418 1,536,876
At 1 January 2010 R=E-%4-8-R 412,220 605,171 5121 2,957 96,156 74200 192,633 1388458 148418 1,536,876
Proft for the year ERRA - - - - - - 180502 180502 47,099 228501
Other comprehensive income for  EEE M2 A4 :
the year:
Changes In fair value of AftEERARE
avallble-for-sale investments,  AAEEZE -
net of tax Y - - - 1,920 - - - 1,920 - 1,920
Total comprehensive income ~ FE 2EM A
for the year - - - 1,920 - - 180,502 182,422 47999 230,421
2009 dividend declared SR-FINERRE - - - - - (74,200 - (74,200 - (74200)
Acquistion of non-controllng B SRR HIERER
inteests - - (3469 - - - (469 (4466  (1.9%)
Disposal of interest t0 a REER TR
non-controlling equity holder ~ E&HAEA - - - - - - (652) (652) 4,252 3,600
Capital injection from FERIEREEA
non-controlling equity holders ~~ EAEA - - - - - - - - 8,239 8,239
Dividends paid to non-controling 2 e 1424
equity holders FEARS - - - - - - - - 7,757 7,757
Proposed final 2010 dvidend ~~ #E=F—%F
FERERS 12 - - - - - B4 (B2444) - - -
Transfer from retained profits ~ RE /& - - - - 8,613 - (8,613) - - -
A 31 December 2010 W-E-3F
+-A=1-H 412,220 605171* 1,652* 4877 104,769 82444 281426* 1492559 212,199 1,704,758
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERERBB2EHIRNE M BARREZFEE O

RMB997,895,000 (2009: RMB902,038,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS & ffiRE&mE R

Year ended 31 December 2010 BZ—FE—FF+-H=1+—HIFE

2010 2009
—2-FF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P RE ARBT T ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RERETHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R AR A 305,011 253,565
Adjustments for: FRUA T IR R
Finance costs BbE AR 6 93,940 85,109
Interest income FEHA 5 (30,537) (26,329)
Amortisation of intangible assets I A ERE 7 2,331 1,968
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments ¥R 1t {# AR E T8 51 7 2,454 2,454
Losses on disposal of items of property,  BREZE - ME&&RE
plant and equipment, net iagisbee 7 4,854 13,010
Depreciation e 7 152,017 138,578
Accrual/(reversal) of impairment of P LB R R L At P WS R
trade and other receivables WERTR(HE) 7 773 (153)
Recognition of deferred income from TR # AL
government grants IEEUA 31(a) (267) (267)
530,576 467,935
Increase in inventories FEEM (162,039) (75,171)
Increase in trade receivables JFEUSAR SR A0 (84,620) (228,151)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and AR BeRkEM
other receivables FEN IGO0 (108,178) (145,926)
Decrease in other long term lease HEtRAAETENR
prepayments D 6,477 2,902
(Decrease)/increase in trade and AN IS ES
bills payables CRA), /18 (76,097) 232,231
Increase/(decrease) in other EAn BRI R
payables and accruals EIRE R, ORd) 86,305 (26,600)
Increase in other long term payables H AR EAFE S FRIBIE AN 1,175 1,900
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income EFEW AL, CRA) 31(b) 306 (3,372)
Cash generated from operations CEELNRS 193,905 225,748
Interest paid 2RFLE (102,885) (96,018)
PRC corporate income tax paid BB ERSHR (110,236) (88,470)
Net cash flows (used in)/from TRE (AR &EEBH
operating activities REmEF5 (19,216) 41,260
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS & ffiRE&mE R

Year ended 31 December 2010 B Z—FE—FF+-HA=1+—HAIFE

2010 2009
—E-TF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARET T ARET T
Net cash flows (used in)/from RE (AR EEEE
operating activities WeREFHE (19,216) 41,260
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREEBHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received EUFLE 37,162 20,368
Purchase of items of property, BEWE  WEKEE
plant and equipment (255,174) (209,259)
Addition to prepaid land lease AT HFRER SRR
payments _ (16,176)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (6,056) (719)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEY  BENMEE
property, plant and equipment FrfS5R38 12,144 642
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time deposits = F EifE 7R (3E0) 30,033 (21,612)
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BEFT B A7) 35 12,062 =
Proceeds from disposal of BB HHERARE
an available-for-sale investment Fri85k38 - 50,000
Acquisition of an available-for-sale U BE AT B R A E
investment (42,000) -
Disposal of interest to a non-controlling R B T IRt
equity holder ERFEEA 3,600 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities FAREEEBHNIR SR F58 (208,229) (176,752)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REBETHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Cash contributions from non-controlling DEREFRFEERSERA
equity holders 8,239 =
Proceeds from issue of debentures BATES TS RIA 498,733 -
Repayment of debentures BEESFHIA - (370,000)
New bank loans and other borrowings FGIRITE R N HALERR 2,910,000 2,039,980
Repayment of bank loans and ERRITERREMER
other borrowings (2,911,980) (1,522,513)
Prepayment for acquisition of Uk BB JEHR ) MM S TR A 3R
non-controlling interests - (5,980)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B JEE )\ e 2 (1,955) (5,980)
Dividends paid ERRE (74,200) (86,566)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IS
equity holders BEARE (40,671) (42,666)
Net cash flows from financing activities REREZSNRESREFHE 388,166 6,275
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HeRESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in,/ (ORd) B 160,721 (129,217)
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERRESEEY
beginning of year 413,811 543,028
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 574,532 413,811
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HEeRBESESEYHREIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRITER 26 574,532 413,811
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B %5 3%

31 December 2010 R=—FE—FF+—-F=+—H

2010 2009
—E-=EF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETRT AREFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB KRB 14 1,543,327 1,475,142
Investment properties EME 15 7,326 7,793
Prepaid land lease payments TR ETE R 16 85,817 88,271
Intangible assets B EE 18 6,018 4,623
Interests in subsidiaries =L =NGIE 19 706,903 440,962
Available-for-sale investment A ERAIRE 20 42,000 -
Other long term prepaid lease payments  E R EFER 21 41,175 43,372
Total non-current assets IEMBNVE E ARG 2,432,566 2,060,163
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 314,407 271,849
Trade receivables JEUBR X 23 279,763 480,917
Prepayments, deposits and other AR BE R
receivables H A e UK 24 176,574 100,996
Loan receivable R E X 25 50,000 50,000
Pledged deposits [REEEIES N 26 8,229 21,860
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 26 262,762 240,379
Total current assets mEVEEMER 1,091,735 1,166,001
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables EEREREER 27 528,606 527,567
Debentures (EEs 28 498,733 =
Tax payable ST 1,637 13,220
Other payables and accruals Hip KR TARE A 29 504,447 423,543
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings M B R77 & 7k I E A & 5K 30 350,000 856,000
Deferred income — current portion FEIEU A — REEB 31 1,216 910
Total current liabilities mEBERE 1,884,639 1,821,240
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFEHE (792,904) (655,239)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,639,662 1,404,924
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B %555 5%

31 December 2010 R=—ZFE—ZFF+-F=+—H

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARETT AREETFIT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERTRBAERS
LIABILITIES 1,639,662 1,404,924
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Fff 2 $R17 & 5k K2 E 12 5% 30 230,000 6,000
Deferred income EEWA 31 2,398 2,665
Deferred tax liabilities BERTBAE 32 9,767 10,685
Other long term payables HMREEMR 7,000 7,000
Total non-current liabilities JEmEN B ELRGT 249,165 26,350
Net assets FEE 1,390,497 1,378,574
EQUITY R
Issued capital BT AR 33 412,220 412,220
Reserves B 34(b) 895,833 892,154
Proposed final dividends FRREAIR B 12 82,444 74,200
Total equity IR A LB (A 1,390,497 1,378,574
Wei Tingzhan Li Chunyan
HEE =HEHK
Director Director
BFE BFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 2% i &3

31 December 2010 =& —

2.1

FELZA=1—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of

China (the “PRC”).

The registered office of the Company is located at Block No. 45,
Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC. The principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is located at 20th

Floor, Alexandra House, 18 Chater Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale
distribution of daily consumer products in the region covering Beijing
city and certain parts of its periphery. The details of the principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial

statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the controlling shareholder of the
Company is Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang

Auxiliary”), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the
equity investments, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 < M &3

31 December 2010 =& —

FFEFZA=1—A

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

76

Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated

on consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling

interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss

of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or

retained profits, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 2% i &3

31 December 2010 —ZFE—ZFF+-H=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 January 2010

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been applied
on a prospective basis. The following differences, however, are
carried forward in certain instances from the previous basis of

consolidation:

o Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non-
controlling interest until the balance was reduced to nil. Any
further excess losses were attributable to the parent, unless the
non-controlling interest had a binding obligation to cover these.
Losses prior to 1 January 2010 were not reallocated between

non-controlling interests and the parent shareholders.

o Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the investment
retained at its proportionate share of net asset value at the
date control was lost. The carrying amount of such investment

at 1 January 2010 has not been restated.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards - Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment - Group Cash-settled

Share-based Payment Transactions

2.1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 < M &3

31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+=-HA=+—H

22 CHANGES

78

IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HKFRS 5 Amendments
included in
Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in October 2008

Improvements to HKFRSS
2009

HK Interpretation 4

Amendment

HK Interpretation 5

Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items
Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners
Amendments to HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations - Plan to

sell the controlling interest in a subsidiary

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

issued in May 2009

Amendment to HK Interpretation 4
Leases — Determination of the Length of
Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
Land Leases

Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of

HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised), amendments to HKAS

7 and HKAS 17 included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 and

HK Interpretation 4 (Revised in December 2009) (Include other

standards as appropriate), the adoption of the new and revised

HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.
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22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

22 B HRERBEEELE)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs FRNZ S RIS T BB 5S4 A

are as follows:

MEBZENT

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that affect the initial
measurement of non-controlling interests, the accounting
for transaction costs, the initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achieved in stages. These changes will impact
the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in
the period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported

results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for
as an equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will have
no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the revised standard changes the accounting for
losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of
a subsidiary. Consequential amendments were made to various
standards, including, but not limited to HKAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows, HKAS 12 Income Taxes, HKAS 21 The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, HKAS 28 Investments in

Associates and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.

The changes introduced by these revised standards are applied
prospectively and affect the accounting of acquisitions, loss
of control and transactions with non-controlling interests after

1 January 2010.
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22 CHANGES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)  Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009 sets out

amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate

transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption

of some of the amendments results in changes in accounting

policies, none of these amendments has had a significant

financial impact on the Group. Details of the key amendment

most applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that only

expenditures that result in a recognised asset in the statement

of financial position can be classified as a cash flow from

investing activities.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

80

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKAS 24 (Revised)

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards - Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7

Disclosures for First-time Adopters 2

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets *

Financial Instruments ®

Related Party Disclosures °
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation - Classification of Rights Issues

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments ~ Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments ?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010, whereas
the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 34 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2011 although there are separate transitional provisions

for each standard or interpretation.

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

€ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

82

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those changes that are expected to

significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1
of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on
the classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity shall classify
financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement of

financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in
HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial instruments
of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged
from HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss using
the fair value option (“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes
in credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
(“OCI"). The remainder of the change in fair value is presented
in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in
respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts which have been designated under

the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 2.3 BEMAEREMVEBHEHRELER (E)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets continues to apply.

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2013.

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of related
parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of related party
disclosure to government-related entities for transactions with the
same government or entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the same government. The Group expects
to adopt HKAS 24 (Revised) from 1 January 2011 and the comparative

related party disclosures will be amended accordingly.

While the adoption of the revised standard will result in changes in
the accounting policy, the revised standard is unlikely to have any
impact on the related party disclosures as the Group takes the view
that due to the nature of the business, it is impractical to disclose

the transactions with government-related entities.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2011. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting policies, none
of these amendments are expected to have a significant financial
impact on the Group. Those amendments that are expected to have

a significant impact on the Group’s policies are as follows:
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

84

(@)

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that the
amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent consideration do not
apply to contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede the application

of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the measurement choice of
non-controlling interests at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets to components
of non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation. Other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by

another HKFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to clarify the
accounting treatment for non-replaced and voluntarily replaced

share-based payment awards.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies that an
analysis of other comprehensive income for each component
of equity can be presented either in the statement of changes

in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Clarifies that the consequential amendments from HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and HKAS 31
shall be applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 July 2009 or earlier if HKAS 27 is applied earlier.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EASFBERHE

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating polices the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits

from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity.
The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group

and other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the ventures stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of
the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be
realised upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint
venture’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint

venture arrangement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

86

A joint venture is treated as:

(@

a subsidiary if the Group/Company has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group/Company does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly,

over the joint venture;

an associate, if the Group/Company does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not
less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is
in a position to exercise significant influence over the joint

venture; or

an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS
39, if the Group/Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than
20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and has neither
joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant

influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERHBIE(E)

(Continued)

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not
less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a

position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in

associates and is not individually tested for impairment.

Business combinations from 1 January 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are

expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

88

(Continued)

Business combinations from 1 January 2010 (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to
be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with HKAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall
not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwillis initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EXSTERBE (&)

(Continued)

Business combinations from 1 January 2010 (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent

period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating

unit retained.

Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010 but after 1

January 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which were
applied on a prospective basis, the following differences applied to

business combinations prior to 1 January 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase
method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest was
measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable

net assets.
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(Continued)

Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010 but after 1

January 2005 (Continued)

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as
separate steps. Any additional acquired share of interest did not

affect previously recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract by the acquiree were not reassessed
on acquisition unless the business combination resulted in a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modified the cash flows

that otherwise would have been required under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the Group
had a present obligation, the economic outflow was more likely
than not and a reliable estimate was determinable. Subsequent
adjustments to the contingent consideration were recognised as

part of goodwill.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or if annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial
assets, deferred tax assets, investment properties and goodwill),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement

in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period

in which it arises.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint

control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
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(Continued)

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual

referred to in (a) or (d); or

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (d) or (e).

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria is satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERBIE(E)

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives used

for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 20 to 35 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and
estimated useful lives
Machinery 5 to 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net

sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and various
infrastructure projects under construction, which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for

use.
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(Continued)

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured at cost, including transaction costs and are
depreciated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
property over their estimated useful lives between 20 and 25 years,

after taking into account their estimated residual values.

Investment properties shall be derecognised on disposal or when
the investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the

retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Intangible assets of the Group represent the acquisition costs of
distribution network software less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life on the
straight-line basis of 5 to 10 years and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at

each financial year end.
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(Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging investments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly

attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention

in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances, trade
and other receivables, a loan receivable, and quoted and unquoted

financial instruments.
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(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised

in the income statement in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or
loss. Debt securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in

market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERHBIE(E)

(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment valuation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement in other expenses and removed from
the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and
dividends earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the income statement as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such

securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial investments
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term are
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the
financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and
the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-
maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the ability

and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.
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(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category,
any previous gain or loss on that asset has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount

recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or

part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.
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(Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that

the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Group could be required to repay.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss
event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate

with defaults.
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(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included

in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring

any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic

prospect of future recovery.
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(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to

other expenses in the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial

asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence

that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income

statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERHIE(E)
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(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination of
what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the income
statement — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment

are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the

classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the
case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction

costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade, bills and other

payables, and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERBIE(E)

(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification

as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation

is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,

when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

=
BURRESE - REENEINENT

B REM

VIR R 2 1% B ERRERERAER
MEEIMEBHUAFTE - RIFTANTE
TRTDEXN > EREBRTRRAKAE
ERETBRERRF R RBA RN XA H
BiE - Hlam REEERABRR

BB ET BB AT 37 a8 Ko W B O B
ERSER— RO EKRERFIENKA - F
MM EHHB SN BERPERAS -

EREREXN
AEELANSBERASVEXFAREN
BEBARBEFEXEGRKRI BT ENNE
XNREERFBEARKNEN - 2RIERE
WBEMBREAABEERRSAG  RHAE
RERBENOKRAABRZEA - V)15
Rig - AEEROERERSOERSHRE
ERERRENETCARORERSXHER
y&wmw%w BER AR HIENSER

o

felo

BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 [103



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 < M &3

31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERHIE(E)

(Continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income

statement.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; or other

valuation models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERHBIE(E)

(Continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

FETMERAE A BB FEME P EREED
iR o FEHRATIZEANLHITETE - fi
REEMEEMKR  AIRABRERMF
BEEREAIRBELAINEEERR - AJERF
ENREAHEBEREZEETT &R
REE R RAGTE

HEHBEERERNE  RERREEEY
HEBEFRARE JEHRER - ARBERA
ERREANReSBET —RRBAR=@EA
WEIERR B EREER DA 2B H e
NEE BHBREAREXRKREENRITE
X BASERSEENHEKIBS ©

HRUBRART S B RkReEEYEHE
FHRRELPABIZREIWRITER -
EEMER

BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010 [105



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 < M &3

31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERHIE(E)

(Continued)

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the

income statement.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit

or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERHBIE(E)

(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary FMERERGERNEEIRRABSELEHIER
difference, except: & ' BRIE:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition e EEMEEGEISHEE AEXBER

of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not

FEEAHIIMMMERMESL - M
ERGERIFESTNECLTIRER

a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary BRToN - TR R 2 ERERE - ARIKR
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax ANMBEERABAHREEE  WBREEA
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be REHIRERBUEF - o] BEEEZE TR
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and Ty =% - APARARGEE M ARARES
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can B HERERERBEE :

be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and
is released to the income statement over the expected useful life

of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@

from the sale of merchandise and produce, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the merchandise and produce
have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably;

income from suppliers, comprising promotion income, display
space leasing income and warehouse storage space income,
according to the underlying contract terms and as these

services are provided in accordance therewith;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

and

dividend income, when the equity holders/shareholders’ right

to receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXS:BEHMEE)
(Continued)
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The Company and its subsidiaries participate in defined contribution
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retirement benefits schemes organised by the local government
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authorities in Mainland China. The Company and its subsidiaries are

required to make contributions to the retirement benefit schemes BOLRBRABHGEEFEEHR - MESY
which are based on a certain percentage of the total salary of BIERKERMNE LEMET - ZFEHERN
those employees and have no further obligation for post-retirement RIEFTEREEMARARHIERERF -
benefits. The contributions are charged to the consolidated income

statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules

of the schemes.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction Ihis - BRI EEAKABRERSARE
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take BREASKHENGEREEEESIRNE
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or BRA  HEXRCAEZEEENT DA »
sale, are capitalised as a part of the cost of those assets. The WMEZEEERY LA AEREREE
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets & AMRIEBZEBRERARER(L - FFiHE
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment EERARGKEEREDNERIEE &
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings RSB WA ERERP M - B
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from HEMESRAEESEHEAST - BEXA
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed PRETEEEEMENF S RAMK
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist K o

of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with

the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the HEETERERAENES  WANUREE
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate, which BRMEE  MTEENEENRI £ H#A
is based on the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable REERBASREENEE(TEEZAR
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the BRAEREENER)NBEBEERARN N
year, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of EFHEEER L E -

obtaining qualifying assets, has been applied to the expenditure on

the individual assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EAEFBERHBIE(E)

(Continued)

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are

recognised as a liability.

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. All differences are taken

to the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange

rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

EZEe MR EMBHRRKRARETH

REENBLIR  EEEBARIRNREE

RRAEBRRASE LHAERIE - BERRIAE
kEKE @ ZEREeHAREE -

WEFBREARRRNINE R 25 EHEH
AR - INERZ ZIER 5 A H)E AE =X
E - RS HEARKAINEHENER
EENBEREANEAEXBHRELSAR
% - AELEZEMABRR -

BASMIE S T RIS 2 B AR O FE I
RIEH RS B MOEERY -« REHEA
TEHENFESEREEEAAEE A
R -

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010|111



112| 20108 tmRE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of

these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2010 was RMB90,204,000 (2009: Nil). Further details

are given in note 17.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses
at 31 December 2010 was RMB48,689,900 (2009: Nil). Further

details are contained in note 32 to the financial statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the write-down amount requires management’s
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-down charge/reversal in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other receivables. The
identification of doubtful debts requires management’s judgement.
Where the actual outcome is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying value of the receivables
and the expenses/write-back of the doubtful debts in the period in

which such estimate has been changed.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties

The Group has estimated the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties at 5 to 35 years, after taking
into account of their estimated residual values, as set out in the
significant accounting policies above. Depreciation of items of
property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line
basis over their expected useful lives. The carrying amounts of
items of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
as at 31 December 2010 were RMB1,789,814,000 (2009:
RMB1,666,608,000) and RMB7,326,000 (2009: RMB7,793,000),
respectively. Further details are given in note 14 and note 15 to

these financial statements, respectively.

EREEERHARAR
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on its products and services and has three reportable

operating segments as follows:

(@) the retailing segment engages in the distribution of live and
fresh produce, dry products, beverages, processed food and
daily necessities through hypermarkets, supermarkets and/or

convenience stores of the Group (the “Retail Outlets”);

(b) the wholesaling segment engages in the wholesale supply of
daily consumer products to consumers, including the Retail

Outlets, other retail operators, and trading companies; and

(c) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the production of
plastic packing materials, and the installation and maintenance

of commercial equipment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that excess
over the cost of acquisition of non-controlling interests and share
of losses of associates are excluded from such measurement in
the consolidated financial statements. The Group’s income tax
is managed on a group basis and is not allocated to operating

segments.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

All assets and liabilities are included in the segment information,

neither assets nor liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are conducted based on mutually-

agreed terms.

The Group has not placed reliance on any single external customers,

amounting to 10% or more of its revenues.

No geographical information is presented as all of the Group’s
revenue is derived from customers based in Mainland China, and

all of its assets are located in Mainland China.
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain asset, liability

and expenditure information for the Group’s operating segments for

the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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31 December 2010 =& —
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4.

Year ended 31 December 2010

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 3= M &3

REDWEN(E)

BE_Z-ZF+-A=1+—-HLEFE

Retailing Wholesaling Others Total
=€ He 3 Hith et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%¥Tr AR¥TR AR%®Tx
Segment revenue yik: 1l ON
Sales to external customers HETIARE 3,395,359 4,036,014 7,356 7,438,729
Intersegment sales HEEHE - 538,132 8,891 547,023
3,395,359 4,574,146 16,247 7,985,752
Reconciliation: #i
Elimination of intersegment sales DEPESHE I (547,023)
Revenue from operations EYN 7,438,729
Segment results AHPEE 148,225 155,784 1,002 305,011
Profit before tax BRE AR FI 305,011
Segment assets PHEE 3,285,299 2,243,782 5,405 5,534,486
Reconciliation: #i
Elimination of intersegment receivables 7 £BF U ZUE 35 (9,493)
Total assets BEE 5,524,993
Segment liabilities ATBEE 2,222,477 1,604,421 2,830 3,829,728
Reconciliation: #i
Elimination of intersegment payables 7 &BF fE (4 FUE 35 (9,493)
Total liabilities =L 3,820,235
Other segment information HipnHEs
Capital expenditure* ézﬁf ¥ 212,483 44,923 16 257,422
Depreciation: E:
Property, plant and equipment I ER & 124,666 26,818 66 151,550
Investment properties REME 467 - - 467
Amortisation of intangible assets BN EESESE 1,061 1,270 - 2,331
Recognition of prepaid land lease BRTHAERMAR
payments 2,454 - - 2,454
Impairment losses recognised/ REZRTRR,/ (EE)
(reversed) in the income statement RERX 1,500 (727) - 773
Foreign exchange differences NERE HZ 58 67 - - 67
S Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARZBIEENNYE  BEREE &

equipment, intangible assets and prepaid land lease payments.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. RESBER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2009

BE_TTNFT_A=T—HLFE

Retailing Wholesaling Others Total
zE #E Het st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Segment revenue KA
Sales to external customers HETIREP 3,110,211 3,573,491 7,334 6,691,036
Intersegment sales A HBEHE = 521,670 5,719 527,389
3,110,211 4,095,161 13,053 7,218,425
Reconciliation: i
Elimination of intersegment sales AEEEEEHE (527,389)
Revenue from operations mEWA 6,691,036
Segment results DHEE 125,758 127,229 578 253,565
Profit before tax BRAEATE A 253,565
Segment assets PHEE 2,973,279 1,831,721 4,719 4,809,719
Reconciliation: ik -
Elimination of intersegment receivables %) 28FE fE LRI 35 (40,879)
Total assets BERE 4,768,844
Segment liabilities FHERE 1,915,570 1,354,756 2,517 3,272,843
Reconciliation: i
Elimination of intersegment payables AR TR (40,875)
Total liabilities wafk 3,231,968
Other segment information Hitn 2 HEH :
Capital expenditure* BARRY 297,848 9,377 35 307,260
Depreciation: HE :
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 110,188 27,801 85 138,074
Investment properties REWME 504 = - 504
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESR 848 1,120 - 1,968
Recognition of prepaid land lease BERLHAERMR
payments 2,454 - - 2,454
Impairment losses reversed REZRTREEKEE
in the income statement - (183) - (153)
Foreign exchange differences INPERE N Z B 119 - - 119
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARTBEEMNME BMELRERE &

equipment, intangible assets and prepaid land lease payments.
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nl

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ EAUR AR 3%
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net WA - TRENAREBHEERE - BEEEWH
invoiced value of goods sold, after deduction of relevant taxes and BEFE - HBRAEBRHIERBREERE ST
allowances for returns and trade discounts. e
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA~ EAA RGN
Group
&=
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Revenue A
Direct sale of EERHEEWR
merchandise and produce: P
Retailing TE 3,369,831 3,087,063
Wholesaling* HrEE 4,036,014 3,573,491
7,405,845 6,660,554
Commissions from FrEEHERS
concessionaire sales 25,528 23,148
Others Hith 7,356 7,334
Total revenue LN N 7,438,729 6,691,036
* Included in the amounts are sales to franchisees amounting to & ESEASHMBEHNHEERARE
RMB422,418,000 (2009: RMB459,093,000). 422,418,000t( — E T L F: AR ¥

459,093,0007T) °
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)

5. WA~ HttWAR W (&)

Group
55
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Other income and gains HAWA R 25
Income from suppliers: TR A HER R
Promotion income HEBA 327,227 269,305
Display space leasing income PROIZEEHEEE R EM
and others 15,429 15,096
342,656 284,401
Gross rental income WAL 88,710 81,333
Interest income A EWA 30,537 26,329
Government grants* T A B 3,028 7,337
Franchise fee MEBEE B 7,129 7,639
Net compensation on FEBYMEREFE
demolished properties 2,244 1,679
Others Hitb 21,138 15,091
Total other income and gains HAp g A MWz 485t 495,442 423,709

ETHIBFHEMERTARE  AREHAE
SEAEMEBEALBRBRSEN S IR
HMHOER  ZEHETREREERTOG

& Various local government grants have been granted to reward the Group #
for its contributions to the local economy and employing the surplus

rural labour. There were no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies

attaching to these grants.

HHHEER -

6. FINANCE COSTS BE KA
Group
55

2010 2009
—E-TF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Interest on bank loans wholly AFREER
repayable within five years IRITE AL 88,005 50,297

Interest on other borrowings AFRER

wholly repayable within five years HEMEFF S 6,647 35,804
94,652 86,101
Less: Interest capitalised w o FIEERL (712) (992)
93,940 85,109
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31 December 2010 —ZE—ZFF+-F=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRER A& A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ R (GEA) AT & IEE - KEBKRBIA
(crediting): Al
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BosE ARETT AREFT
Cost of inventories sold ELFERKA 6,397,472 5,759,316
Depreciation: E -
Property, plant and equipment WME - WE K RE 14 151,550 138,074
Investment properties "EMZE 15 467 504
152,017 138,578
Amortisation of intangible assets I EEE 18 2,331 1,968
Amortisation of prepaid land lease T ETER
payments s 16 2,454 2,454
Minimum lease payments under LESeikOld
operating leases on properties - 3ivitn 126,565 117,484
Losses on disposal of items of LEYE - BE REE
property, plant and equipment, net  EEF5E 4,854 13,010
Accrual/(reversal) of impairment of JE UK BR 5% R L A FE R
trade and other receivables AR (%) 773 (153)
Net rental income FHEFWA (88,710) (72,534)
Auditors’ remuneration A G 2,153 2,200
Staff costs: BITAA
Directors’ emoluments EEMe 9 6,904 6,703
Other staff costs HAth 8 TAA
Wages, salaries and social T% - HeREeRERAE 338,675 323,875
security costs
Retirement benefit contributions RORIEFI R 31,692 28,725
370,367 352,600
377,271 359,303
Foreign exchange differences HMNERE HZE 7R 67 119
8. RETIREMENT BENEFITS BRER
The Group’s contributions to pension costs amounted to BE_Z-ZTFR-_FTTNAFT-_A=T

approximately RMB31,808,000 and RMB28,833,000 for the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, respectively.

—BLEFE AEEMHRKEHNEZKLETE
o Bl 4 B A R #31,808,0007T & A R ¥
28,833,0007T °
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EX - EEFMrRIANVE=SHESHM

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES &

Details of the remuneration of directors and supervisors for the year, BREBBRATES LR REE D BHEA
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities F1611G - FREEREEME 2B RED
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Section 161 of ™

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Group
8
Directors Supervisors
S E=S
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZEF | ZZETNF| ZEB-ZF| ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB'OOQ RMB’000 RMB'OOQ
ARBTR | ARETT| AR®BTR| ARETT
Fees e 199 160 68 68
Other emoluments: ,H\’r@@ﬂﬁ :
Salaries, allowances and %ﬁ% ° @H@&Eﬁﬂ
benefits in kind E"T@ﬂﬁ 2,281 2,219 799 977
Performance related bonuses* e 4,308 4,216 1,403 1,314
Retirement benefit contributions  RIRAE IR 116 108 69 81
6,705 6,543 2,271 2,372
Total HEt 6,904 6,703 2,339 2,440
* Certain executive directors and supervisors of the Company are entitled * ETARRRNTEERESHEREEES -
to bonus payments which are determined based on the Company’s HTYRBARQRFERFFMERE

net profit for the year.

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FAXNTEIERTEENE SN
the year were as follows: N
2010 2009
—Z2-ZF —ZTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETTT
Mr. Fan Faming SEIERRSE A 20 40
Mr. Huang Jiangming =) LR A 20 40
Mr. Chung Chi Kong ER e 40 80
Mr. Chen Liping BRIz T oA 21 =
Mr. Wang Liping FFRFELEAE 21 =
Mr. Onward Choi BEREEE 77 =
Total @t 199 160
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent REEANWEEMSZ N TEIIERTESRN
non-executive directors during the year (2009: Nil). FW(ZZEZNF - F) -
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p=]l)

9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND 9. EE - EE¥FMEENVERSHFES KM

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) & (%)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEERIHITEE
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind  Performance benefit
e 28 related  contributions Total
Fees REfM bonuses BIKEA  remunerations
we BENRE ENRE HR Memig
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®TR ARET R AR¥ETR AR®T R
2010 —E-EZF
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Wei Tingzhan fEELE - 777 1,746 29 2,552
Mr. Li Jianwen TENEAE - 777 1,746 29 2,552
Ms. Li Chunyan EERTLT - 466 491 29 986
Mr. Liu Yuejin BB S L - 261 325 29 615
- 2,281 4,308 116 6,705
Non-executive directors: FHITES -
Mr. Gu Hanlin BEMEAE - - - - -
Mr. Li Shunxiang FIER L AE - - - - -
Total @5t - 2,281 4,308 116 6,705
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind Performance benefit
e Eh related  contributions Total
Fees REAf bonuses BRBH  remunerations
we EWA= B R & 2%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT AREFT AREFTT AREFT
2009 —ZETNF
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr. Wei Tingzhan FEEEE = 772 1,556 27 2,355
Mr. Li Jianwen TENEAE - 772 1,556 27 2,355
Ms. Li Chunyan XS - 364 369 27 760
Mr. Liu Yuejin 2RS4 - 311 735 27 1,073
- 2,219 4,216 108 6,543
Non-executive directors: IEHITES -
Mr. Gu Hanlin BUEMSTE = - = = -
Mr. Li Shunxiang 2 IEE S A4 - = = = -
Total st - 2,219 4,216 108 6,543
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9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND 9. EE - EEFMEENVESHFES M

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) & (#E)
(c) Supervisors (c) E=
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind  Performance benefit
#Hd - 2E related  contributions Total
Fees RHEM bonuses EKBF  remunerations
ik BWAE ENRe HR B 458
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®T AR¥ETR AR®T R AR®T
2010 —E-=F
Ms. Qu Xinhua [EFE L+ - 229 769 - 998
Ms. Wang Shuying ERELZ L - 206 599 14 819
Ms. Yao Jie kit - 194 35 30 259
Mr. Chen Zhong PREE S A& 34 - - - 34
Ms. Cheng Xianghong 24 L+ 34 - - - 34
Ms. Liu Wenyu 2 Fw L - 104 - 14 118
Ms. Wang Hong FH 4 - 66 - 11 77
Mr. Yang Baoqun HEREE - - - - -
Total Bt 68 799 1,403 69 2,339
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind Performance benefit
e 2R related  contributions Total
Fees REA bonuses EREF  remunerations
we BEWA= EuES 3 B 58
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFTT ARETTT ARBFTT
2009 —ETNF
Ms. Qu Xinhua JR3rEE 22+ - 419 737 27 1,183
Ms. Wang Shuying TR L+ - 398 553 27 978
Ms. Yao Jie skt - 160 24 27 211
Mr. Chen Zhong PREE % A 34 - - - 34
Ms. Cheng Xianghong — #2MRI4I &+ 34 - - - 34
Mr. Yang Baoqun HERTE - = = = =
Total HEt 68 977 1,314 81 2,440
There was no arrangement under which a director or a NEE RN EAMESKEERENXF
supervisor waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during EWETMANE -
the year.
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9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(d)

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2009: one) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note (b) above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2009: four) non-directors, highest paid employees for

-ﬁ”

B ESFMRIVGESHESNH

(&)

d) EUESHESHHE

AEERARUSREFEREEBEMAL(=
ZTAE: —()EF - EFMHBR
R M EE o) BB = (=FTNF:
M) &= FIFEERBNFMFBL

the year are as follows: ™
Group
&5
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
Salaries, allowances and e EMEREMEYNZR
benefits in kind 2,975 3,527
Performance related bonuses ERR RS 4,958 14,839
Retirement benefit contributions 3R {R4&E F £ 3k 23 41
7,956 18,407
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose IEENRSFHEE  EHFHMBERNUTEE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: EHHEWT :

Number of employees
EEH

1=}

2010 2009

—E-FF —TTHF
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7#7C%2,500,0007% 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,701,860 (FHENARE1,701,860TE

to RMB2,127,325) AR¥2,127,3257T) 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7L £3,500,0007 T
(equivalent to RMB2,552,791 (HHERARKE2,552,791 L2

to RMB2,978,255) AR#2,978,2557T) 1 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7L £4,500,0007% 7T
(equivalent to RMB2,978,255 (HHERARE2,978,255T2

to RMB3,829,185) AR#3,829,1857T) 1 1

HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 7T % 11,000,000 7T

(equivalent to RMB8,934,765 (HHER ARS,934,765T2

to RMB9,360,230) AR#9,360,2307T) - 1

3 4
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10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profit
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate. The Group is not liable for
income tax in Hong Kong as it does not have assessable income
currently arising in Hong Kong. Under the prevailing PRC income tax
law, the Group and its associates are subject to corporate income

tax at a rate of 25% on their respective taxable income.

The income tax in the consolidated income statement of the Group

comprises the following:

10.

FrigH
AEBEAREREERELTRNAEEK
B 72 A R R 48 P A 0 W A R S AR
MBRMPTISH - N&KE B AT EIRNF B
THERBEA - AEEFTHATENSE
B o RIBEPBERITAAFHEARE  @ARA
SENEBERFANEEMERKESEBE
ARTUAIZ 25 % H) T R iR

AEBAHBERTAESHEEMAT

Group

LY
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Current income tax — PRC REAFRAS R — 77,428 65,965
Deferred income tax BEEFTISH (918) (916)
Total tax charge for the year FEBIES BB 76,510 65,049
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31 December 2010 =& —

10.

11.

12.

e5+=A=+—A

INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FIBH (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax HARKRBADS M EEMETENDER
at the statutory rate to the tax expense at the Group’s effective SHERAEBNERCEMBRBEAE
rate, and a reconciliation of the statutory rate to the effective tax RIS - WRAEREMEH R
rate, are as follows: ERMESRILHERNAT
Group
£8
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®T Batk | AR®FIT Btk
Profit before tax B 5% Bl i A 305,011 253,565
Income tax at the PRC statutory & BAE TS T fE R
income tax rate SHEH PSR 76,253 25.0 63,391 25.0
Expenses not deductible for tax — NATHIF Sz H 2,712 0.9 1,190 0.5
Tax losses not recognised RIERFIBE A 1,274 0.4 2,250 0.9
Tax effect of non-taxable income  JEfEREFIUW A TR B 2 (1,591) (0.5) (1,817) 0.7)
Others Hith (2,138) 0.7) 35 =
Tax charge at the Group’s REEERRERIES H
effective rate 76,510 25.1 65,049 25.7
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 11. B2RFHEAEMLRT
PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the WARRNB M BHREHE-ST—TF+ A

year ended 31 December 2010 includes a profit of RMB86,123,000
(2009: RMB164,692,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 34(b)).

DIVIDEND 12. RS

?;E/)TEEEHEHX i @%
/\EMOQOE
(ZZEFhF : ARKO.187T)

Proposed final - RMB20.0 cents
(2009: RMB18.0 cents)
per ordinary share

2010
—g-uf
RMB’000
ARMT 5T

82,444

Zt+—BLEFEZEBRREEARGAE MG
A ARES6,123,000T(—EF
#164,692,0007t ) (Ff7£34(b)) °

NE AR

2009

—ETNF

RMB’000

ARETTT

74,200

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+-A=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based

on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of

the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

13.

BAREBRREEARGEREF

SREARFTREAFESA T ERRS
B AR EF RS E NS BT ERRIE
FHBRBGHE -

2010 2009
—g-%F | -—TThE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Earnings: 2
Profit attributable to ordinary equity IR B EBAAAZEA A
holders of the parent JEA 5 F) 180,502 147,783
2010 2009
—E-ZF T NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETIT
Shares: B -
Weighted average number of REENARERER

ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

BN ENERITERK

pillk: B2 2live 2

ns

412,220,000 412,220,000

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share

amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2010 and

2009 in respect of a dilution as the Company had no potentially

dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years.
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31 December 2010 —ZE—ZFF+-F=+—H

=11l

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% RERFZE
Group 55
Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements Machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT NEEE Ha BoRE RE HEIR &5

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

31 December 2010 RZE-BE
+=f=1-A
As at 31 December 2009 RZZENE
and at 1 January 2010 +-A=t+-H
k=E-ZF
Cost B 914,296 493,665 516,614 131,146 48,269 122,059 2,226,049
Accumulated depreciation ZinE (111,227)  (104,938)  (237,452) (87,495) (18,329) - (559,441)
Net carrying amount ERFE 803,069 388,727 279,162 43,651 29,940 122,059 1,666,608

As at 1 January 2010, net of ~ H=Z—FF—F—H

accumulated depreciation MK 25HE 803,069 388,727 279,162 43,651 29,940 122,059 1,666,608
Additions #m 1,187 36,089 57,936 15,720 2,203 138,232 251,367
Acquisition of a subsidiary KEHB AR

(note 35 (Hi335) - 48,928 36,939 3,851 612 75 90,405
Disposals RE (6,798) (172) (3,669) (107) (1,016) (5.2%)  (16,998)
Depreciation i (26835) (44468 (63312  (11617) (5,318) - (151550
Transfers BA - 46,539 2,650 898 - (50,087) -

As at 31 December 2010, net ~ RW-E—FF
of accumulated depreciation +-B=+-8"

il i 770,623 475,643 309,706 52,396 26,421 205,043 1,839,832
As at 31 December 2010; WZZ-ZF
+=A=1+-R:
Cost A 911,011 631,481 620,172 153,114 50,208 205,043 2,571,029
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (140,388)  (155,838)  (310,466)  (100,718) (23,787) - (731,197)
Net carrying amount ErFE 770,623 475,643 309,706 52,396 26,421 205,043 1,839,832
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31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+=-HA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. M% - W&E NMEHE (&)

Group -3
Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements Machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF NEKE e N nE ERIRE &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR AR%Tr ARETt ARET:
31 December 2009 RZZTNF
t=A=+-A
As at 31 December 2008 RZZENE
and at 1 January 2009: +-A=+-8k
RZZENE
—A—-R:
Cost KA 785,836 399,898 466,338 128,546 53,519 134,431 1,969,068
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (84,422) (70,748) (185,626 (81,559) (18,240) = (440,589)
Net carrying amount FEFE 701,414 329,150 281,212 46,993 35,279 134,431 1,528,479
Asat 1 January 2009, netof ~ R-ZTHE
accumulated —-A-A"
depreciation MR 2iHnE 701,414 329,150 281,212 46,993 35,279 134431 1,528,479
Additions 1 123,955 51,088 22,415 11,883 674 80,354 290,369
Disposals RE - (12,768) (128) (296) (465) - (13,652)
Depreciation il (27,084) (37,410) (52,936) (15,096) (5,548) - (188,074)
Transfers =N 5,298 58,662 28,599 167 - (92,726) -
Transfers to EA
investment properties REME (3215)
(note 15) (514) = = = = = (514)
As at 31 December 2009, net ~ M=EENE
of accumulated +-h=+-8"
depreciation MR2FHE 803,069 388,727 279,162 43,651 29,940 122,069 1,666,608
As at 31 December 2009: RZZTNE
+-A=t-R:
Cost KA 914,296 493,665 516,614 131,146 48,269 122,069 2,226,049
Accumulated depreciation ZitiTE (111,227) (104,938) (237,452) (87,495) (18,329) - (559,441)
Net carrying amount REFE 803,069 388,727 279,162 43,651 29,940 122,069 1,666,608
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31 December 2010 —ZFE—ZFF+-H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. Y% - BERRESE)
Company AT
Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements Machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
&2 NEXE e BARE RE HEIR @zt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR AR®TR  ARETx

31 December 2010 —Z-2%
+=A=t+-H
As at 31 December 2009 RZEENF
and at 1 January 2010 +-A=+-Bk
R_Z-Z%
—-f—R:
Cost B 867,189 399,461 387,875 103,785 26,532 122,059 1,906,901
Accumulated depreciation ZitTE (110,446) (67,098) (178,367) (66,839) (9,009) - (431,759)
Net carrying amount ERFE 756,743 332,363 209,508 36,946 17,523 122,059 1,475,142

Asat 1 January 2010, netof ~ R=E-FE—-F—§ -

accumulated depreciation MR EHTE 756,743 332,363 209,508 36,946 17,523 122,059 1,475,142
Additions 120 1,187 28,677 24,197 6,251 78 136,483 196,873
Transfer to a subsidiary BAMBLA - - 112 ) - - 105
Disposals BE (6,798) (172) (2,102) (113) (12) (5,236) (14,433)
Depreciation ik (25,962) (32,480) (#1,7114) (11,383) (2,821) - (114,360)
Transfers E:N - 46,539 2,650 897 - (50,086) -

As at 31 December 2010, net ~ RN-F-Tf&
of accumulated depreciation +=A=+-A

Mk 2arE 725,170 374,927 192,651 32,591 14,768 203,220 1,543,327
As at 31 December 2010: R-E-ZF
tZA=1+-8:
Cost AR 863,904 475,219 403,069 110,627 26,594 203,220 2,082,633
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (138,734)  (100,202)  (210,418) (78,036) (11,826) - (539,306)
Net carrying amount FEFE 725,170 374,927 192,651 32,591 14,768 203,220 1,543,327
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31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. V¥ BERRE®)

Company NG
Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements Machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT NEXE e BRRE nE ERIRE @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETT  ARBTT ARETT ARETE AR%TT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2009 R-BThE
t=A=+-A
As at 31 December 2008 RZZENE
and at 1 January 2009: +-A=+-8k
RZZENE
—R—H
Cost A 772,570 314,994 360,962 102,772 26,794 113,136 1,691,228
Accumulated depreciation EHE (84,054) (43,483) (144,566) (63,844) (6,398) - (342,845)
Net carrying amount REFE 688,516 271,511 216,396 38,928 19,896 113,136 1,348,383
Asat 1 January 2009, netof ~ RZZTHE
accumulated 0
depreciation Bl e 688,516 271,511 216,396 38,928 19,896 113,136 1,348,383
Additions byl 90,111 41,789 20,695 9,927 201 80,354 243,077
Transfer to a subsidiary EAWBAT - - - (35) - - (35)
Disposals RE - (12,768) (29) (249) (14) - (18,055)
Depreciation ik (26,668) (26,836) (34,858) (11,792) (2,560) - (102,714)
Transfers EIN 5,298 58,662 7,304 167 - (71,431) -
Transfers to BA
investment properties REME(HF15)
(note 15) (514) - - - - - (514)
As at 31 December 2009, net ~ R-EZhAE
of acoumulated +-A=1-H
depreciation NRZFHE 756,743 332,363 209,508 36,946 17,523 122,059 1,475,142
As at 31 December 2009: RZZENE
+-A=t-H
Cost KA 867,189 399,461 387,875 103,785 26,532 122,069 1,906,901
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (110,446) (67,008 (178,367 (66,839) (9,009) = (431,759)
Net carrying amount REFE 756,743 332,363 209,508 36,946 17,623 122,059 1,475,142
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31 December 2010 —ZE—ZFF+-F=+—H

14.

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Company (Continued)

All the Group’s and the Company’s buildings are located in Mainland
China.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s and the Company'’s buildings
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB160.1 million
(2009: RMB649.8 million) were pledged to secure certain bank loans
granted to the Group and the Company (note 30).

As at 31 December 2010, except for a property with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB6.6 million in aggregate located in
Shijiazhuang (2009: RMB512.6 million for five properties) and
properties under construction, the Group has obtained ownership
certificates for all of its buildings.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

"E'I_i

14. Y% - BERSZE &)

NE (&)
FIEAKRBEMARRMNEBFHMNFTEAX

BE

MN-T—TE+-A=+—0 KEEKRK
AEREFELARK160,100,000( =
TNF  AR¥649,800,0007T ) AEF K
HEAERERAEER AR RERNE TRTT
B (FIFE30) ©

RZE—ZF+_A=+—H8 B—EN
RA R AR EFE D A R 6,600,000
THME(ZSTNF : AEME - AR
512,600,000t ) REZ T - REEDE
BBEMENERES -

15. REWE

Group and Company

SEREATE

2010 2009

—E-=F —ZETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B®RAEE 7,793 7,783
Transfer from owner-occupied wEAmEEA(MEI4)

property (note 14) - 514

Depreciation provided during the year ZR4FE & & (467) (504)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—H/ERmE 7,326 7,793

Fair value NAE 25,493 22,856

The Group’s and the Company’s investment properties are situated

in Mainland China and held under the medium term leases.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note

38(a).

AEBMARRNRE Y RBLIRN T B
WIAFEIFHAR A

BREMEDRBLERMERBETE=77 &
SR IBEN M RA M E38@) 2 -
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15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWEE)
At 31 December 2010, the Group’s and the Company’s investment RZE—ZTF+ZA=+—H KAEEMNK
properties with a carrying amount of RMB5.9 million (2009: RMB6.3 NRIBREEA A RS5,000,0007THI% & W%
million) were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the (ZZEZTNF - ARKB,300,0007T) 1 AR
Group and the Company (note 30). FERAEBFARRERNE TIRITER
(Mt5£30) °
The fair values of the investment properties as at the end of the R EHEERFREME L AR BERBEL
reporting period were determined based on the valuations performed BEYEGEMERTEETHBERERA
by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent firm of RAIFTEH 2 BT - ZARBERTHZ
professionally qualified valuers. The fair value represents the amount BABENERES RABHBERE A RAF
at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, RGFEEEEFMPREE °
willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s length
transaction at the date of valuation.
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. TiAEAMNK
Group and Company
R AT
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZERHEE 88,271 74,549
Additions H#n - 16,176
Recognised during the year RELHER (2,454) (2,454)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—RAZEAE 85,817 88,271

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held under

long term leases.

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s and the Company’s prepaid
land lease payments with a carrying amount of RMB24.0 million
(2009: RMB883.1 million) were pledged to secure certain bank loans
granted to the Group and the Company (note 30).
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l]E'I—|

17. GOODWILL 17. BHE
Group =
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2010: R-ZE—TF—H—Q:
Cost and net carrying amount R R AR EFHE -
Acquisttion of a subsidiary (note 35) WEEWE AR (MFE35) 90,204
Impairment during the year REERE =
Cost and net carrying amount RZE—TF+-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2010 2R R BR DA 90,204
At 31 December 2010: R-_E—ZEF+-_A=+—8":
Cost 2% 90,204
Accumulated impairment RETRE -
Net carrying amount AR 3HE 90,204

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated

to the subsidiary acquired as a whole for impairment testing:

Cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the subsidiary has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 13%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows of the subsidiary beyond the five-year period is 3%, which was

the same as the long term average growth rate of the industry.

AR E R
BERBAHESHNBEEBRRHUER
MEBAR - AREERAR :

REELHEN
ERBERAEEEIEN T FHUBREM
HER R EREEE - #E TH
BARMAIEINEHE - HE MR AT
BEZ13% - ARRBMB AR RFHIA L
RERBRER3%  BITERRATFHER
KR °
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17.

18.

eE+=A=+—A

GOODWILL (Continued) 17. BE(E)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) BERENRE)
Cash-generating unit (Continued) BeEHEN(E)
Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the W ZTF+—-_A=+—BWBLARER
subsidiary for 31 December 2010. The following describes each E{E”y%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ TRAHEMBER - TR TE
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow I8 BT 1T P 2R BRI S B i IR & R R ORI
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill: AR RERERE
Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value BEEMNE-BREETEEEN XS RER
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross MEREEEFA —FERMNFEHENEK
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, A TEER R MCEMTERNTERE - 8
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected FEFEIE AN o
market development.
Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect R R ERITER - R EAE
specific risks relating to the relevant units. B ABENEERE -
The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external SIRGEE BN EEEINIE B RFE—
information sources. o
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE
The intangible assets of the Group represent the carrying amount REBMEFEERBE AND HBE LEHT
of a distribution network and software acquired. CEETE
Group Company
8 NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Ef “ETNF —E-Ef —ZEThF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARETT | AR¥TR | ARETT
Cost at 1 January, net of R—A—BHRE
accumulated amortisation B 2T 7,330 8,583 4,623 4,756
Additions Ll 6,056 715 2,456 715
Amortisation provided REFEHEEE
during the year (2,331) (1,968) (1,061) (848)
At 31 December, net of R+=ZA=+—H"
accumulated amortisation Tk Rt 8 11,055 7,330 6,018 4,623
At 31 December: R+-A=+—RH:
Cost N 22,234 16,178 13,034 10,578
Accumulated amortisation REHEH (11,179) (8,848) (7,016) (5,955)
Net carrying amount REFE 11,055 7,330 6,018 4,623
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19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

H!i

19. (5B QT AvERS

Company
NG

2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx ARETIT
Unlisted investments, at cost JELETRAKE - BN AE 500,988 333,847
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NGIE R 267,629 146,493
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A B 5IE (61,714) (39,378)
706,903 440,962

Included in the amounts due from subsidiaries as at 31 December
2010 were entrusted loans provided by the Company to Beijing
Chaopi Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Trading”) (the “Borrower”),
amounting to RMB150 million with floating interest rate of one-year
lending rate, to finance the Borrower’s working capital. The entrusted

loans were arranged via the Bank of Beijing.

Except for the aforementioned entrusted loans, all the amounts due
from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these amounts due

from/to subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

Particulars of the subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31

December 2010 are as follows:

R-ZZE—ZTHF+-A=+—8 BRHEL

AIRERBEARARIREEPALEERNE
BARI(TBAHEE] - [EAFDHERER
A R #150,000,0007T (it — 4 BB {8 FOF B 7
) LMEAEATHAELELS - Z5Z
REFBBIL RRITREE -

B ERBRERZI - AR FEAHE
ARWFEGREEN REREREEER
A

5 o %% B 2 AR MR P SR B
% -

R-B—BFE+=A=+—0 ARAWE
ARFEWT -
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. LB A BIRER (&)

Percentage
Nominal of equity
Place of value of attributable
registration paid-up and to the Company
and registered Direct Indirect
operations capital ¥ UNG 3t Principal

Name B L HREAMER BAEZF DL activities

NCIEE REEHH fREE HiE BE  FEEK

Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Langfang, PRC RMB50,000,000 100.00 - Retail of general
Company Limited B B S AR #50,000,00070 merchandise
(“Jingkelong Langfang”) —RERTE

ItRREE (Bh) BRAF
([REERE])

Chaopi Trading Beijing, PRC RMB368,000,000 79.85 - Wholesale

BHEE FEER AR#368,000,0007T of general

merchandise
—REmitE

Beijing Xinyang Tongli Beijing, PRC RMB1,600,000 52.03 - Production of
Commercial Facilities HEIL R AR #1,600,0007C plastic packing
Company Limited materials and
("Xinyang Tongli") installation and

I RRGBNREERAR maintenance of
([FREz@ A1) commercial

equipment

ERBEMHEE
MERRFHLE
RRE

Beijing Jingkelong Beijing, PRC RMB29,000,000 100.00 = Retail of general
Supermarket Chain FEIER AR #29,000,0007T merchandise
Company Limited —WRERTE

ITRRERETEEERAR

Beijing Chaopi Huaqging Beijing, PRC RMB18,000,000 - 42.66 Wholesale of
Beverage Company Limited HEIER AR #18,000,0007C drinks and food
(“Chaopi Huaging’) (2) KRR Mt

IR EFRRBEREE
RRI([HAREE Q)

Beiing Chaopi Flavourings Beijing, PRC RMB23,750,000 = 42.03 Wholesale of
Company Limited HEIER AR #23,750,0007C flavourings,
(“Chaopi Flavourings”) (2) edible ol

IRBMRARREREE and food
ARI([ARARR D) TR &R A

HERRMAE
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. (LB A BIRER (&)
Percentage
Nominal of equity
Place of value of attributable
registration paid-up and to the Company
and registered Direct Indirect
operations capital RN AN Principal
Name EEaiz e HREMER BAERT AL activities
NREH REEHE BRE1E H# Mg  EEER
Beiing Chaopi Shuanglong Beijing, PRC RMB24,000,000 = 47.11 Wholesale of
Alcohol Sales Company FEIE R AR 24,000,000 alcoholic
Limited (2) beverages
I RAREREEHEER BBt B
BEEDFQ)
Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Ol Beijing, PRC RMB36,000,000 = 43.30 Wholesale of
Sales Company Limited FEER AR#36,000,000 edible oil
(“Chaopi Jinglong”) (2) R

L REH R R AR S E AR
BEARRESHIREEDQ)

Shijiazhuang Chaopi Xinlong Shijiazhuang, RMB5,000,000 = 79.85 Wholesale of
Trading Company Limited PRC AR #5,000,0007C alcoholic
BREFHBEREERAR FEAKRE Beverages

RSBt B

Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Qingdao, PRC RMB5,000,000 - 79.85 Wholesale of
Trading Company Limited FEFSE AR#5,000,0007T alcoholic

SEHREEEERAR beverages

B m i

Beijing Chaopi Zhongde Beijing, PRC RMB28,000,000 - 79.85 Wholesale of
Trading Company Limited FEER AR #28,000,0007T consumer
(“Chaopi Zhongde”) sanitary

I RBARPEEEERAA products
([&stiE]) Rt Amit#

Beijing Chaopi Huilong Beijing, PRC RMB12,000,000 - 58.85 Wholesale of
Trading Company Limited FEER AR #12,000,0007T alcoholic
(“Chaopi Huilong”) beverages

IR EREE AR AR RS m it
([EABtiER 1)

Taiyuan Chaopi Taiyuan, PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 79.85 Wholesale of
Trading Company Limited FEKR AR #5,000,0007T general
merchandise —MREm#tE

ARARBEERLRA
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

NREH

Tangshan Chaopi
Trading Company Limited
merchandise

ELSHAEEBRAF

Tianjin Chaopi
Trading Company Limited
merchandise

RRPHBEERAA

Chaopi Yuli Trading
Company Limited (2)
merchandise

ERBHAFEEERAFQ)

Beijing Shoulian Supermarket
Company Limited
(“Shouchao”) (3)

IR EMETARAR
([ER1)E)

Beijing Shoulian Jiulong
Supermarket Company
Limited (“Jiulong”) (3)

IR BB AR BT
BRAR(TAEDE)

Beijing Shoulian Haotian
Trading Company Limited
(“Haotian”) (3)

EREHERBEBREEIRA

(T2XRDE)

Place of
registration
and
operations
AL
REEHHY

Tangshan, PRC
FEE L

Tianjin, PRC
HEIRE

Beijing, PRC
HEIER

Beijing, PRC
LR

Beijing, PRC
FEIIER

Beijing, PRC
IR
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Nominal
value of
paid-up and
registered
capital
BREMmES
BREE

RMB5,000,000
AE#5,000,0007T

RMB15,000,000
AK®5,000,0007C

RMB12,000,000
A& #12,000,0007T

RMBUY8,453,439
AER#98,453,4397C

RMB10,000,000
A& #10,000,0007T

RMB500,000
AR#500,0007T

19. {5KE QR AR (&)

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company
Direct Indirect
RAR M
BAEZH DL
HE i

= 79.85

= 79.85

= 30.31

100.00 =

100.00

100.00

Principal
activities

FEER

Wholesale of
general
—MREm#tE

Wholesale of
general

—REm#tHE

Wholesale of
general
—REmE

Retail of general
merchandise
—REMTE

Retail of general

merchandise
—MERTE

Retail of general
merchandise
_»fgb =¥

2= e
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31 December 2010 —ZE—ZFF+-F=+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries of the Company are audited by Ernst

& Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young

global network.

Notes:

M

All subsidiaries except Chaopi Trading are registered as limited liability
companies under the PRC law. Following a share reform, Chaopi
Trading turned into a joint stock limited company on 31 May 2010.

These companies are directly held by Chaopi Trading or its subsidiary as
to more than 50% equity interests and are accounted for as subsidiaries
of Chaopi Trading. Since the Company held a 79.85% equity interest
in Chaopi Trading as at 31 December 2010, such companies have
been accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company, though the equity

interests indirectly attributable to the Company are less than 50%.

During the year, the Group acquired Shouchao from a third party.
Jiulong and Haotian are directly held by Shouchao as to 100% equity
interests. Since the Company held a 100% equity interest in Shouchao,
Jiulong and Haotian are the subsidiaries of the Company. Further
details of this acquisition are included in note 35 to the financial

statements.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

19. (5B A R AVER (&)

BEARFMB AR AR KB BRI K
BIBRX B AR B B &AT o

BT -

BREAREE S - FTAMEB R RIE AP B
BRAMOBREELA - LRMHHISER
PHHER —_Z-—ZTFAA=+—BRAR
BEERREEARNHARAT -

ZEMPUNEEERAIHENBR R
HBBS0%R A S AT - WA AFAME
BB AR - BARRIBE-T—TF+
Z A=+ BRI ET9.85%H XA
% ZERBMARRRNHEAR -
BEARAUEMBERAORAEZ LR
50% °

RAFERN  AEERFE=FBEAEE - A
EMZR100%H AR R EBEERS °
EARREHEA BB100%M IR AR - AR
MEXRHBARDAEHERAE o BN ILIER
R IB R B 5 3R P 35 o
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31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+-A=+—H

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AHEERNKRE
Group Company
%8 N
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-%F | —TThF | —B-BF | _TTAF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz | ARBTR ARETT | AR®TR AREET T
Listed equity investment in RFPEIEA
the PRC, at fair value ERBRARE -
BRARE (a) 6,853 4,293 - -
Unlisted equity investments, FELEMBRAEE
at cost R ANE 43,188 1,188 42,000 -
Less: impairment loss of equity &, : IR AR E
investments REEE (1,188) (1,188) -
42,000 - 42,000 -
48,853 4,293 42,000 -
Less: Current portion B AR E AR S
included inequity B ANE
investments, at cost - = - =
Non-current portion FEARHE S 48,853 4,293 42,000 -

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities
which were designated as available-for-sale investments and have
no fixed maturity date or coupon rate. The fair value of the listed

equity investment is based on quoted market prices.

Note:
(@ During the year ended 31 December 2010, the net gain of the

Group’s available-for-sale investment of RMB1,920,000 (2009: gain

of RMB2,222,000) was recognised as other comprehensive income.

142| 2010F5F It R mEREEEERIHBARA A

RS ERARBATHEENS MY
EMRARZS - ¥ AEEROERBRAE
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31 December 2010 —ZE—ZFF+-F=+—H

21.

22.

OTHER LONG TERM LEASE PREPAYMENTS

Other long term lease prepayments of the Group represent the long
term portion of rental expenses prepaid to third parties in respect

of the lease of certain premises and warehouses in Beijing for a

21. HttRPEERANSRK

HtRHPHEERNREAKRERELREE
ETHHARETN\FNEXRSHLES
BNGRE= TN RABERIBNIRFTHE

period of five to eighteen years. HAER S ©
Group Company
&8 AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TH | ZZThF —E-BF | —ZThF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREF T ARETR ARETTT
Cost at 1 January, net of R—A—BHRA
accumulated amortisation B ZAHNBR REHEE6H 77,788 75,167 51,114 46,375
Additions # 0 16,215 11,932 15,220 8,186
Amortisation provided RNEFNEHERE
during the year (17,174) 9,311) (11,651) (3,447)
At 31 December, net of W+=—A=+—8
accumulated amortisation R 76,829 77,788 54,683 51,114
Less: current portion included in ~ J& : BEEMT - &K
prepayments, deposits H A e IR
and other receivables ZANERE S (18,672) (13,256) (13,508) (7,742)
Non-current portion 58,157 64,532 41,175 43,372
INVENTORIES 22. 78
Group Company
£® NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-%F | ZTTNF | —B-FF | ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREF T AR®TR ARETTT
Merchandise and produce HEERmNER
for resale 985,511 773,429 304,790 262,156
Raw materials JRA 9,617 9,614 9,617 9,614
995,128 783,043 314,407 271,770
Low value consumables KEZHFER 2,228 2,208 - 79
997,356 785,251 314,407 271,849
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143



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 2= M &3

31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+-A=+—H

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. FEWERFR

Group Company
% 2

2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-BF | —TThF | —B-BF | _TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFT AR¥TR AREFT
Trade receivables FEMBR R 1,185,689 1,199,117 279,763 480,917
Impairment BE - (727) - =
1,185,689 1,198,390 279,763 480,917

The Group normally allows a credit period of not more than 60
days to its customers. A longer credit period is granted to its major
customers with long term relationship. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group’s trade
receivables as at 31 December 2010 comprised approximately
2,500 (2009: 2,500) customers with amounts ranging from
RMBO0.001 million to RMB260.5 million (2009: RMB0.001 million
to RMB462.1 million). Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing
except for amounts due from Beijing Shoulian Trading Company
Limited (“Shoulian”), an independent third party, which bore interest
at a rate of 5.3% (2009: 5.3%) per annum.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables of the Group and the
Company as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of provision, is as follows:

AEERTEENERE—RTBHBAT
B - URBERBEGHEENEIEEFETR
EOEAMS - AEEREBRSIZEHE MK
WEHmERES  SREEES THgA
HAEECHETTIE R —ZF+
ZA=FT—8  AEEAREEERKRERD
R #2500 (=TT AF 12,5008 ) &
B EEUGREHRARE,000TE ARE
260,500,0007L( ZZEZTHF : fEAREE1,000
TTZE A RE462,100,0007T) © b FEUB S F
=HEREEEEREERAR(EEH
B HAE U BR SRIR F FIR5.3% (ZTTNEF
5.3%)sFES + HERREWER TR ©

AN SR B e AN X AR i B A SRR AR R
BEEZHHLNBEGERZORR S TH
T

Group Company
%6 NG

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-TF ZEENE —Z-ZF ZEENEF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARET T ARET T ARET T

Within 2 months WEAZA 635,557 728,925 19,225 97,945
2 to 6 months MEZSEA 270,592 242,527 - 160,818
6 months to 1 year NEAR—EF 111,952 202,570 95,678 198,145
1 to 2 years —ER| —F 167,588 24,368 164,860 24,009
1,185,689 1,198,390 279,763 480,917
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. W (&)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables FEURBR SR SRR BB BN a0 T

are as follows:

Group Company
T A
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF “ETNEF —E-FF “ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | AR®TT | AR®TR | ARETRT
At 1 January Wn—R—H 727 880 - -
Amount written off as uncollectible 2% #5E5k - - - =
Impairment losses reversed BEREMRERK (727) (153) - =
At 31 December BW+=—A=+—8H - 727 - =
The provision represented the individually impaired trade receivables HA360R A R BRI HE P R EBERE D
related to customers that were outstanding over 360 days. The P EBEHRMEER - REEF FMERTER
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements TS AR E (5 AR -

over these balances.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered RERBENERIRRERR ST T

to be impaired is as follows:

Group Company
£H NG

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF —E-Zf —ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT | ARETT | AR¥TR | AREBTT
Not past due RiBH 636,930 889,207 19,233 258,763
Less than 1 month past due BEREA—EA 139,945 73,268 3,322 27,638
1 to 3 months past due BHBEA—EAZ=EH 153,446 93,247 19,439 56,316
Over 3 months past due BHEBA=1EA 255,368 142,668 237,769 138,200
1,185,689 1,198,390 279,763 480,917
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. FEUREERR (4

Included in the trade receivables of the Group and the Company as RZT—FTF+_A=+—H £5H

at 31 December 2010 was an amount of approximately RMB260.5 %4 A R #260,500,0000( — & T 1L F -

million (2009: RMB462.1 million) due from one of the Group’s major 462,100,0007T ) /) fE W BR SR 2K B AN &R B &Y

customers, Shoulian, and the overdue balance was approximately —RBErEXFEl HIBREESED

RMB260.5 million (2009: RMB222.2 million). In the opinion of A A R #260,500,000t( = T T L F:

the directors, no impairment is necessary in view of the following 222,200,00070) c EER A ERUTE

considerations: o H bt EUGRIE SRR EURE ¢

- The balance of Shoulian subsequently settled RMB180.5 - HBEBEMEET AR180,500,0007T
million including RMB179.3 million for acquisition of 86% WER ERRER=-E——F—A
equity interest in Beijing Jingchao Trading Company Limited T+ RHARKBIEIRREBEES
(“Jingchao”) on 25 January 2011. For further details, please FRAA( AR ]) 86%i i m AR K
refer to note 42; and 179,300,0007T ° E % F1EHF LB T

42 K

-~ Shoulian arranges to pledge one piece of land and related —  HEBZHESMRIEERHNRETERAR
buildings situated in Beijing with a total value of not less than #91,900,0007T B — 5 b R AR RE 5 /&
RMB91.9 million to the Company to secure the overdue trade ERAEARDT] - UEREEZIHEK
receivable. AR o

Other than the trade receivables due from Shoulian above, the Br bt B0 B B R B B AR RN - ELERIE

receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number WRAHEAEEERFBALHENETEL

of independent customers that have a good track record with the B A ABERBERE ERUEL

Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company B ARESERA BZEFBBHEEAX

are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary EREEELBNMERATEIHKE - U2

in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant BLERBERE AEER LABRELRES

change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully ERIER S E A E FIE R

recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit

enhancements over these balances.
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

24. ENR > BREREMERKR

Group Company
£@ AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF —E-Ef —ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT ARETR AREFT
Prepayments to suppliers TE{H L e P 5K 0E 276,723 253,636 19,379 9,341
Other receivables H it 8 IR 64,635 56,147 38,522 33,661
Prepaid expenses SRR 55,484 30,207 29,921 15,959
Input value-added tax receivables 1B it A 1 fE UL 708 145,192 90,576 88,752 42,035
542,034 430,566 176,574 100,996
Other receivables = e
Group Company
£® NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—ET-ZF ZETNEF —E-ZfF ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREFT ARETT AREFT
Other receivables H i fEUGR 71,635 63,147 45522 40,661
Impairment A (7,000) (7,000) (7,000) (7,000)
64,635 56,147 38,522 33,661

The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables

are as follows:

Hi MU EREZEBNT

Group Company
58 AF]

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-EF —TENF —E-EF —TENF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBFT AR¥TR ARBFT

At 1 January W—A—H 7,000 7,612 7,000 7,612

Impairment losses recognised B ERL 1,500 = 1,500 =
Amount written off as Bz

uncollectible (1,500) 612) (1,500) (612)

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010|147



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 < M &3

31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+-A=+—H

24,

25,

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, EER > REeREMERREE)
RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The individually impaired other receivables relate to receivables HiBBICORKHARNRE P E b FEUER SR
from customers that have been outstanding over 360 days. The BRI EBEERE - ANEEY FMeREER
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements TR HE MR -
over these balances.
An aged analysis of the Group’s and Company’s other receivables NEE B AN AR R T A 4% 1 52 R (B HY) EL A e U 5k
that are not considered to be impaired is as follows: 2RI
Group Company
]| NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BE | —TThE —E-FE | —TTHhE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARETRT | AR%TR | AR®TR
Not past due RiBH 64,635 56,147 38,522 33,661
Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate HtbEWEEFRBH KESMERL TR
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there was no EFPEZEREPHERNELMARE -
recent history of default.
LOAN RECEIVABLE 25, EWER

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s and Company’s loan receivable
represented an entrusted loan made by the Company to Shoulian
through the Bank of Beijing. The entrusted loan is unsecured,
bears interest at an annual rate of 5.3% and will mature on 25 May
2011. The carrying amount of the loan receivable approximates to

its fair value.
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RZZE—FTF+-RA=+—H BREE
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

26. RERBESEEYUARBEFRER

DEPOSITS
Group Company
£8 NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-%F | ZTTAF | ZB-FF | ZTTNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz | ARETR AREF T AR®TR AREF T
Cash and bank balances Re RRITEH 574,532 413,811 262,762 240,379
Time deposits EHER 21,966 51,999 8,229 21,860
596,498 465,810 270,991 262,239
Less: Pledged time deposits B EEREBER
Pledged for bills payable BREN IR o7 (21,966) (48,258) (8,229) (21,860)
Pledged for secured RRITERER
bank loans I 30 - (3,741) - =
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 574,532 413,811 262,762 240,379

At the end of the reporting period, except for cash and bank
balances of RMB92,000 (2009: RMB117,000) which were
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group’s cash and bank
balances were denominated in RMB, which are not freely convertible
in the international market. The remittance of funds out of the
Mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the

PRC government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default.

MNBREHBMERRE  AEEBRE RRTE
BABR A R®92,000t(ZZTENF - ARK
117,0007T ) LASNESI(E SN - HERH AN RHE
FE - BETREERBIBRTISEARR - RHE
AREH) & & I8 50 7E 5T P B BURT O B 5 PR )
AR ©

FATTE BRI 2 R TR E B B4 S A=
2IBFERME - ERERGBRN K — B
M=MAZM TETAREENRLER
3 AT BRERAE BT 2R 8, o 3R 1T 4 BRI HE 4T
BABHRER G BETEAEEZ BN
BIEBHRT -
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27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is analysed as

BAERRERE

BT 45 AR RO FE A R R R BRI T T
HY BRE AT

follows:
Group Company
£8 N

2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-BF| —TThF | CB-BF| _TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T ARET R AREET T
Within 2 months WM& A 2A 918,616 818,916 390,462 355,199
2 to 6 months R RE AN 131,082 203,291 127,780 165,255
6 months to 1 year NERE—F 9,164 4,999 7,077 4,662
1 to 2 years —FE|—F 5,012 2,262 2,302 1,501
Over 2 vears BE—F 1,638 1,739 985 950
1,065,512 1,031,207 528,606 527,567

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 60-day terms.

As at 31 December 2010, the bills payable of the Group amounting
to RMB87.3 million (2009: RMB152.1 million) were secured by
certain of the Group’s pledged time deposits amounting to RMB22.0
million (2009: RMB48.3 million) (note 26).

As at 31 December 2010, the bills payable of the Company
amounting to RMB26.4 million (2009:RMB64.1 million) were secured
by certain of the Company’s pledged time deposits amounting to

RMB8.2 million (2009: RMB21.9 million) (note 26).
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ENEARRBETMENE - —REEHR
RBORK °

R-T—TE+_F=+—8 AEEEN
TR H AT ARM87,300,000 L ( ZETNEF
A R #152,100,0007T ) + B 4~ & B 5 4
AE#22,000,000c(ZZEZENF : AR
48,300,0007T, ) B SR 17 7E BATF 7042 it #E R (BT
5£26) °
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21,900,0007T ) & $R 17 & BATF sk IR (2 AR (Y
F26) °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 3= i &3

31 December 2010 —ZE—ZFF+-F=+—H

28.

29.

DEBENTURES 28. &%
On 28 July 2010 and 15 September 2010, the Company issued RZE—ZTFLtAZ+NBRZZ—ZFAN
debentures in aggregate amounting to RMB300 million and RMB200 A+HEB ARAIDRBTREARARE
million, respectively, with a term of maturity of one year. The 300,000,0007T X A £ #200,000,0007T ) 52
debentures are unsecured, interest-bearing at 3.4% and 3.6% per HighE S HIRA—F - 2R HmESFEE
annum and are issued through the Bank of Beijing. The carrying R FREHHNES.4%%3.6% @ @B FIR
amounts of the debentures approximate to their fair values. The 11817 - ZEBFNEREEHEQ R BEMLD
debentures will be settled on 28 July 2011 and 15 September BRZE——F+EtA=Z+NBEZ=ZE—F
2011. NATHBEIERFEA -
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HiWERRERTEREH
Group Company
£8 AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZF| ZZTHhF | ZB-TF| ZZTThF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR| ARETRT | AR¥TR ARETTT
Accrued salaries, wages EfEe - TEREF
and benefits 11,288 19,972 7,657 15,395
Deposits from suppliers ftrErs FAMAALRS
and lessees 27,990 31,222 22,809 28,852
Advances from customers BEEFER 376,868 288,258 349,584 271,758
Interest expense payable EF S ER 8,922 17,867 7,557 1,370
Rental expense payable ENHEEER 15,981 6,378 7,414 5,270
Accrued operating expenses EEtEEEA 4,849 1,169 2,191 1,169
Construction fee payables ERTEE 114,105 105,511 94,359 88,692
Dividends payable to [ANER G N
non-controlling equity holders FAEAZKRE 1,504 49,932 - =
Others Hith 36,310 24,321 12,876 11,037
Total other payables and Hib R &
accruals HiRERERE 597,817 544,630 504,447 423,543

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are payable within

one year.

H AR BT FS - BN — RN
fif o
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30.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. MEMRITERRHMMER
BORROWINGS
Group
£H
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
A AR®ETRT A ARETT
Current ZRHEEB
Bank loans — secured RITER—FEF - 2010 568,470
Bank loans — unsecured HRITE R 2011 1,185,000 2010 560,000
Other borrowings — unsecured E b f& FR—# {7 - 2010 397,510
Current portion of long term  KHISE/TERAREIH
bank loans — secured — B - 2010 50,000
1,185,000 1,575,980
Non-current FEAREE D
Bank loans — secured RITER—AHEA 2013 430,000 2011 6,000
1,615,000 1,581,980
Company
AT
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
A AR®ETRT FHE  ARETT
Current ZRHEREB
Bank loans — secured RITER— FEF - 2010 456,000
Bank loans — unsecured \'fﬂﬁf%%ﬂ(f?ﬁiﬁﬁ 2011 350,000 2010 350,000
Current portion of long term  KHIRITEFARE IS
bank loans — secured —aiKH - 2010 50,000
350,000 856,000
Non-current FARHEER D
Bank loans — secured RITER— KR 2013 230,000 2011 6,000
580,000 862,000
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 30. Hf 2R

TERKREMERE)

(Continued)
Group Company
58 AF]
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNEF —E-FF ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARMETTT ARMEF T ARBTT
Analysed into: X =
Bank loans repayable: EEERITER
Within one year or —FRNER
on demand EXEE 1,185,000 1,178,470 350,000 856,000
In the second year FF 200,000 6,000 - 6,000
In the third to fifth years, F=ZERHF
inclusive (BEERMEF) 230,000 - 230,000 -
1,615,000 1,184,470 580,000 862,000
Other borrowings repayable: FEEZE A :
Within one year —FR - 397,510 - -
1,615,000 1,581,980 580,000 862,000
(@) Bank loans (@) |ITEX

All of the Group’s and the Company’s bank loans, which are
denominated in RMB, bear interest at fixed rates ranging from

4.0% to 5.6% (2009: 4.9% to 7.5%) per annum.

(i) Secured bank loans

As at 31 December 2010, the secured bank loans of
the Group and the Company amounting to RMB430.0
million and RMB230.0 million, respectively which were
secured by certain of the Group’s and the Company’s
buildings, investment properties and prepaid land lease
payments with aggregate net book values of approximately
RMB160.1 million (note 14), RMB5.9 million (note 15), and
RMB24.0 million (note 16), respectively.

FTBASEERARARBITETEIUAR
BEE - DRIRNFR4.0%E5.6% (=
TZNF  4.9%F7.5%) K EE F &
SHEFS o

() BEFRITE
R-ZB-—TFE+—A=+—HB &
SEMARBNAERIBITERR
=t AR #430,000,0007C & A R #
230,000,0007T * 7 Bl B3 A 55 [ K2
AARKET  REMEM LA
ERMNFERBRER  REFEE
SFED BIA A AR 160,100,000
T(KiEE14) - A K #5,900,0007T
(PfF5E15) F1 A K #24,000,000 (
#£16) °
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30.

FEFZA=1—A

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)

(i)

(if)

Secured bank loans (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, the secured bank loans of the
Group and the Company amounting to RMB612 million
and RMB512 million, respectively which were secured
by certain of the Group’s and the Company’s buildings,
investment properties and prepaid land lease payments
with aggregate net book values of approximately
RMB649.8 million (note 14), RMB6.3 million (note 15), and
RMB83.1 million (note 16), respectively. In addition, the
secured bank loans of the Group amounting to RMB12.5
million were secured by certain of the Group’s pledged
time deposits amounting to RMB3.7 million (note 26).

Unsecured bank loans

Except for the bank loans of the Group amounting to
RMB720 million (2009: RMB210 million) guaranteed by
the Company and RMB315 million (2009: Nil) guaranteed
by Chaopi Trading, the Group’s and the Company’s bank
loans amounting to RMB150 million (2009: RMB350
million) were unsecured as at 31 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2009, the unsecured other borrowings

of the Group were borrowings from Jiangxi International Trust
& Investment Company Limited, an independent third party,
amounting to an aggregate of RMB397.5 million, bearing

interest at a fixed rate of 5.3% per annum. They were

guaranteed by the Company.

154 201053 tmREE
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30. ISR

TERREMER(E

BEFRITE (E)
R-—ZTEAE+_A=+—8"
AEEMARBHEEIFRTE
AR #612,000,0007T & A R
512,000,0007T * 9 Bl B3 2% & & A0
KRARMETFT - WEWEM L i
HEBNRIEABERER - £KE
SFEDRIH A AR 649,800,000
T (HEE14) « A K %6,300,0007T
(H5E15)F1 A R #83,100,000 (Ff
F516) o B REEFE TR
TE R A R #12,500,0007T
HASEEEEFATHTFRARE
3,700,000 TR (FIE26) °

(i)

ERFIRITE
RZZE—ZTF+-A=+—8 " K
A £ B A R #720,000,0007T( =
ZZNF - AR¥210,000,0007T)
WIRTTERBAARARAEREAR
#315,000,0007( Z T T A, F -
%)%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁmdﬁ)ﬂrﬁf’iﬁ*{%z
SN AEBRAR B BT AR
150,000,0007T( = ?i@nfﬁ HUN
R #350,000,0007T ) A9 R 17 & 3k
fIER -

(ii)

NRZBEhE+-_A=+—H8 ~5£E
%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁwﬁ?ﬂ%@ﬁi”—ﬁiﬁl
BERREERAR  BEAARK
397,500,0007T ° Imiﬂ%ﬁ%v ==
RRBER ©
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31.

DEFERRED INCOME . EEWA
Deferred income of the Group and the Company as at 31 December RZE—ZTF+ZA=+—H0 xEEERK
2010 represented deferred government grants and deferred income NAMEER AR EERNmERNRERED
arising from the loyalty points programme. RENET AR A -
Group and Company
EERAT
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
PiEE ARBTT ARBT T
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—HA—HBERHEE 3,575 7,214
Additions N (b) 949 643
Released to the income statement BESIERR (910) (4,282)
Carrying amount as at 31 December WK+ —HA=+—HEMmE 3,614 3,575
Current portion NERER S (1,216) (910)
Non-current portion FEARHRE 2,398 2,665
Notes: BT
(@)  In 2005, the Beijing Municipal Commission of Development and Reform @ RZZETAF ERTmEENNEZEGH

and Beijing Municipal Chaoyang District Finance Bureau granted
RMB3 million and RMB1 million, respectively, to the Company for
the construction of a fresh produce logistics centre and a logistics
system. The construction had been completed as at 31 December
2005. Therefore, the amounts were recorded in government grants
and are amortised at RMB267,000 each year over the useful lives of

the corresponding assets beginning from 1 January 2006.

The Group maintains a loyalty points programme within its retail segment
which allows customers to accumulate points when purchasing goods
in the Group’s retail outlets. The points can be redeemed for discounts,
subject to a minimum number of points to be obtained in the future. The
amount allocated to the loyalty award credits is recorded in deferred
income until the awards are redeemed in the next year, or the liability

is otherwise extinguished in March 2011.

ARTELRMERBRAART D HBEARAR
#:3,000,0007T &2 A E #1,000,0007T 9 8
TRREREHRMEXPORIARRL
ZEIREN-_FFAFT-A=+—HA%
B e Bt - AR BERABRF B ERE =
ZERF-A-BRRAREAETEAMR
FFEHHARK267,0007T

FEREETEDNRE -—RETLHED
HE)EE - ANBEREASETEEHEE
B 2FHED - ZEDERIESRER
EE A AER TN - FAIEREE SRR
BHEARECUAN  BEZRBET —FE
WHBRKZETR - ——F=AZIH -
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32. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as

32. EERIE

ELERERE

RAFRNELEHR AR BNESHERNOT

follows:
Group Company
£8 NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF —EENE —E-ZF “ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFT AR®T R ARBEFT
At 1 January »—HA—H 11,671 11,601 10,685 11,601
Deferred tax credited FEMNFABRE
to the income statement EEAETRIE
during the year:
Changes in fair value of an AT EEERARE
available-for-sale investment PREEEE) 639 986 - -
Capitalised interest expenses FEIR2
into construction in progress BALF S (650) (648) (650) (648)
Gain on exchange of a building FEEEHRNE (268) (268) (268) (268)
Fair value adjustments arising V=GN =N
from acquisition of a subsidiary DABEAR 894 = - =
615 70 (918) (916)
12,286 11,671 9,767 10,685
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8
Provision in respect of: BiE R
Temporary difference arising from A/ S5 & AR E
changes in fair value of an DA BER I
available-for-sale investment =R 1,625 986 - =
Temporary difference arising from A& F| S F
capitalised interest expenses AEEIESIHW
into construction in progress R =R 4,500 5,150 4,500 5,150
Temporary difference arising BEEEHRNE
from a gain on exchange S HmEGERER
of a building 5,267 1585 5,267 DI588
Fair value adjustments arising V=GN =N
from acquisition RABEERAE
of a subsidiary 894 = - =
12,286 11,671 9,767 10,685
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=11l

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. EEBIE(E)
Deferred tax assets BEHBERE
Group 2010
&= —T—F
Losses available for
offsetting against future
taxable profits
AR AR AR A F
FERE R
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2010 R-_ZE—TF—-H—H -
Deferred tax arising from TR B U BB B A R MR R B
acquisition of a subsidiary 12,172
Gross deferred tax assets RZE—ZTF+_A=+—H
at 31 December 2010 IR IE & EE B R 12,172
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities ERE®REN  BLELEHBEEEHREER
have been offset in the statement of financial position. The following R BRRERPEE - R BREE A -
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial HARKRERERIBREN ST ¢
reporting purposes:
RMB’000
ARET T
Net deferred tax assets recognised R & I BRI &K P IERH
in the consolidated statement R IR & B R
of financial position 12,172
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised & B TS AR ST 3% AP FE R A
in the consolidated statement EERIR B EFE
of financial position (12,286)
(114)
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33.

ISSUED CAPITAL 33. BETRA
Group and Company
EEEAT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFIT
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
230,060,000 Domestic Shares 230,060,000/% &% E &
of RMB1.00 each AR¥1.00HIAE B 230,060 230,060
182,160,000 H shares 182,160,000/ &I EE
of RMB1.00 each AR ¥E1.007THIHAL 182,160 182,160
412,220 412,220
34. RESERVES 34. f#fE
(@) Group (a) &£E

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 70 of

the financial statements.
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34. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

€5 +=A=+—A

34. REE)

Company (b) 27
Statutory
Share surplus
premium Capital reserve Retained
account reserve EERR profits Total
BB EADES N %%ﬁﬂ g
RMB’™ 000 RMB" 000 RMB" 000 RMB’™ 000 RMB" 000
ARETTT ARETT ARET T AREFTT ARETT
(note (i) (note (ii))
(PBHEE () (P 2T (i)
Balance at 1 January 2009 —ETNF
— A28 605,171 5,121 55,910 135,460 801,662
Total comprehensive income  FERNZH
for the year Wi B - - = 164,692 164,692
Transfer from retained profits {R& % F 'J?%)\ - - 16,469 (16,469) =
Proposed final 2009 dividend #tE —ZZTAF
RER S - - = (74,200) (74,200)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTNF
and 1 January 2010 +=-A=+—-H
RZZT—TF
—A—H 605,171 5,121 72,379 209,483 892,154
Total comprehensive income  FE AN
for the year Wates - - - 86,123 86,123
Transfer from retained profits (R % FEEA = = 8,613 (8,613) =
Proposed final 2010 dividend #k —Z—Z 4
RERE - - - (82,444) (82,444)
At 31 December 2010 RZT-ZF
+-A=+—H 605,171 5,121 80,992 204,549 895,833
Notes: FiaE -

(i)

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the respective
companies’ articles of association, the Company and its
subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory profits after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses),
determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and
regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of
each entity’s reserve fund reaches 50% of its registered capital,
any further appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital after

such uses.

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had retained profits of
approximately RMB204.5 million (2009: RMB209.5 million) after

the appropriation of the proposed final dividend.
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RIBERE D RERBED R ERAE -
AATREMBATIEEREFELR
GBI B SOR T B FIRIBL A A
HORHEFEER)MI0%IARE
EERBRABEE - EATEBLES
Rt & BE D E M E AR50 % B -
AR R T HIER  EERABATE
A ARER AR FBIRSIENAR
B BAEABRATESAR LAR
BB IFRHRETEONRREMER
25% °

RZZE—ZTF+=A=+—8 ' £2Q7
BB R IR BB RBEFNHAR
#204,500,0007T(—ZTENF : ARH
209,500,0007T) °
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATION 35. (BEH
On 24 December 2010, the Group acquired a 100% interest in RZE—ZTF+AZ+WEE - AEEAF
Shouchao from a third party, Shoulian. Shouchao is engaged in ZH BB B EBI00%EE - HRHETE
the retail industry. The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s 7% ZWEDAKBEMISHEREN—I
strategy to expand its market. The purchase considerations for 5o WK E R AREIR$24,230,0007T
the acquisition were in the forms of cash and trade receivables, of K & Y BR 2N R #506,930,000 T 485K © B &
RMB24,230,000 and RMB96,930,000, respectively, settled at the R IEE B 2T o
acquisition date.
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Shouchao REEAEEAERANEENEENAAE
as at the date of acquisition were as follows: W
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
AL
U B FERR
Note RMB’000
hE=d ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment M - RE MEEE 14 90,406
Other long term lease prepayments - REATH G, 5 102
Deferred tax assets EREF IR E = 12,172
Cash and bank balances & RIBITEERR 36,292
Trade receivables FEUER X 383
Prepayments and other receivables — F& 17k K H th e U 3% 15,895
Due from the parent company SRR ER (107,004)
Inventories TE 50,066
Short term loans EHER (35,000)
Trade payables FEFERER (3,399)
Accruals and other payables RE &G ANEN (28,063)
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEAE (894)
Total identifiable net assets AERHFEEAR
at fair value 30,956
Goodwill on acquisition g S 90,204
Satisfied by cash RE KBRS
and trade receivables 121,160

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables as at
the date of aquisition amounted to RMB383,000 and RMB825,000,
respectively. The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables were RMB383,000 and RMB825,000,

respectively.

160| 20105 %k St mRRREEEERNDERA A

U B RE MR TR R H b R R B A A (B
B 5 Bl &5 & AR #383,0007T & A R #
825,0007T ° & Uy AR 7R A E 4t FE R B9 & R
D BB /B AR383,000 kAR
825,0007T °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 2% i &3

31 December 2010 —ZFE—ZFF+-H=+—H

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB241,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are

included in other expenses in the consolidated income statement.

The Group considers the most important factors to decide the
purchase considerations are customer flow and favorable locations,
which are not recognised as intangible assets at acquisition
date because they cannot be measured reliably. None of the
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax

purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a

subsidiary is as follows:

35. EXKEHE)

REEBRAXWBEENR RN BARE
241,0007T ° ZERX HEABL L AW EFRLA
AHEEROEMASH -

AEBAETUEREMEENZEENRE
RERRBGWEL  HEEXASENE
BERERA R EERRETLEE - FRK
P E B EIE IR AT SHR B /Y

BARUBH B ARNRSRAOMAT

RMB’000
AREFT
Cash consideration BeRE (24,230)
Cash and bank balances acquired FTIEIR & MIRTTHE B4 36,292
Net inflow of cash and cash Re RREEFBYWRANFHE
equivalents included in cash BRERERMEEESNIR SN
flows from investing activities 12,062
Transaction costs of the acquisition — YB&Ex KA
included in cash flows from BIEREBKEFESNRER
operating activities (241)
11,821

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue from continuing operations of the Group and the net profit
of the Group for the year would have been RMB7,493,435,000 and
RMB185,842,000, respectively.

WEHBEEFY  AEBFELSLENK
ARKTEBFEFHNEED R AARE
7,493,435,0007T & A R #185,842,0007T °
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. AEE
As at the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not R E ARG RE - EMBRERPRERE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: R ARBEWT :
Group Company
%8 A
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —EENE —E-ZF —EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR| AREFTT | AR®TR| ARETT
Guarantees given to banks HETFHBARNRE
in connection with facilities R RIRITRAEER
granted to subsidiaries - - 1,040,000 260,000
Guarantees given to other financial ~ FE KB AIE
institutions in connection with BMEBERE SR
facilities granted to subsidiaries HERMEER - - - 397,510
- - 1,040,000 657,510
As at 31 December 2010, the facilities granted to subsidiaries RZE-—ZFFF+_A=+—H AFRQ7A
subject to guarantees given to banks and other financial institutions MBTEEMSREERHEERMET
by the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately WMBARKNBMEREEZFRDANEFERLN
RMB720,000,000 (2009: RMB210,000,000) and Nil (2009: A R #720,000,000t( Z T L F: A
RMB397,510,000), respectively. K #210,000,0007C ) R E(=ZF T A & :
397,510,0007T) °
37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37. EEEH

Details of the Group’s and the Company’s assets for securing bank

loans and bills payable are included in notes 14, 15, 16, 26, and

27 to the financial statements.
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€5 +=A=+—A

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group and the Company lease their properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 20 years. The terms of the leases generally

also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company had

. RERONZH

(a)

ERHAA
AEBRARRRBELLEHER AL
ETREDE  HHPR-—FI_1+FK
FHER - HERK - RBFABRAX
NRESR °

R-E—ZTF+-A=+—0 A&

total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable RARTIEBFRIBEEE TS E
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: YRR FERE R B FTAEDT
Group Company
5E A
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-%F| ZTTAF | ZB-BF| ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR| AR®TT | AR®TR| ARETR
Within one year —FLAR 40,545 43,454 37,376 41,079
In the second to fifth F_EEREF
years, inclusive (BEEEWE) 123,895 138,597 111,119 128,046
After five years HFUAE 91,773 121,910 65,408 96,257
256,213 303,961 213,903 265,382
As lessee (b) 1EBAFEA
The Group and the Company lease certain of their properties REBRARNARRBLEEEELZHERA
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are ETWE MEEBENTF_FE2=1
negotiated for terms ranging from 2 to 20 years. FH)FHRER o
As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company had RZZE—ZTF+-A=+—H &&H
total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable R R BB R A T U A & M A R R A&
operating leases falling due as follows: EHEENTBEAOT -
Group Company
&8 AF]
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TE| ZETTHNEF | ZB-BF| ZTTNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR| ARETT | AR®TR| ARETT
Within one year —F AR 138,067 94,724 88,151 60,527
In the second to fifth F_ZERF
years, inclusive (PREEWE) 554,564 499,652 311,107 340,591
After five years REH 1,201,646 | 1,174,552 846,317 903,137
1,894,277 1,768,928 1,245,575 1,304,255
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38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

eE+=A=+—A

As lessee (Continued)

A lease that is cancellable only upon the occurrence of some

remote contingency is a non-cancellable operating lease

as defined under HKFRSs. Pursuant to the relevant lease

agreements, the Group is entitled to terminate the underlying

lease agreements if the attributable outlets have incurred losses

in excess of a prescribed amount or such outlets will not be in

a position to continue their business because of losses.

39. COMMITMENTS

40.

Capital commitments

. REBONTHE)

(b)

EREBA(E)
—IAMAEE B A AR LR/ N TR B
NEHRFARE  RRAZBORER
B TSRS 2RI PR E & BN A UG A8 &
A - RBEEEEHZE  BEEEE
BEEA —EHENZSEHEBE
BORRECER - NEBARLKIEEE
EHE R -

39. AiE

The Group and the Company had the following capital commitments,

BARENE
RBEREERE - AEERAAREER

principally for the construction and acquisition of property, plant and EE - BB RZENEREREENE R
equipment at the end of the reporting period: BT
Group Company
%5 NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —EENE —EZ-2F —EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT | AR®TR ARBFT
Authorised, but not B - BRITA
contracted for 36,133 43,359 30,726 43,359
Contracted, but not BET4) - BREE
provided for 82,046 72,061 75,306 72,061
118,179 115,420 106,032 115,420
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEALRS
(@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (@) BRUBmMEREMITORIOEERS
financial statements, the Group had the following material SN AEBREEANEEEATETT
transactions with related parties during the year: WMTERXR 25
Group
55
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARBT T ARBTT
Controlling shareholder: PERR AR R -
Expenses on property leasing WEMEER (i) 10,401 10,382
A subsidiary of the controlling IR FRTE A
shareholder: \
Expenses on property leasing  EMEEA (ii) 2,100 2,100
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

(Continued) @@ (#&)

Notes: E:

()  Pursuant to three property lease agreements and supplementary () BEAARHBEIRRRANHER
agreements signed between the Company and Chaoyang BRGNS TNFNA=+HAT
Auxiliary, between Chaopi Trading and Chaoyang Auxiliary 5] WERMBRNEABERLRZ
dated 30 April 2004 and between Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang TEMFLA—BREITN=MHYE
Auxiliary dated 1 July 2004, and the supplementary agreements, HEHE kT HE(HBZEAORGR B
with the commencement and expiry dates on 1 January 2004 MEWMBBHSNA—TTENF—A—

and 31

Trading and Xinyang Tongli rent properties from Chaoyang
Auxiliary for operation purposes at basic annual rentals, including
related business taxes and property taxes of approximately
RMB7,340,000, RMB1,099,000 and RMB16,000, respectively,

FELZA=1—H

December 2023,

respectively, the Company, Chaopi

40. BEALXRZ (&)

(BIEEEEERRYER) S

AR—ZE-_=%+=-A=+—A8)"
AT A B RREE N AFAERR
mIEAYEEEERE  EAFHMY
IESV-IN
FR#7,340,0007T + AR #1,099,0007T

%I

with a term of increase of rentals including related business taxes M AR16,0007T © BIRIBIEFNS £
at 5% or 20% for each aforesaid fixed rental period. Pursuant to a mETEHEeHRAEece#lS(2ER
supplementary agreement dated 24 March 2006 signed between BAZ T ) 5%5K20% ° RIEA N T EHE

the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary, the Company ceased the

BRIEmN _ETRNF=A - +THmEZ]

lease of one of the leased properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary SRR BE  ARBTBEREE

with effect from 1 January 2006. The aggregate annual rental to
be paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary by the Company since 1 January
2006 was reduced from RMB7,340,000 to RMB6,952,000.

On 4 April 2006, the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary entered into

a lease agreement, pursuant to which the Company leased one Bl

| &

Bl
}zm}

A
Pt

miAER—HEHENE 5=
TRE-A—HBER - ARFB
ZERF-A-HEEXNTFHBAR

MRFEHRSE R AR7?,340,000

TR E ARE,952,0007T °

RZZEZXFNAMA » AR FHEAE
ST—HEERE B AR

s 27
more property from Chaoyang Auxiliary for ten years commencing AmEBGIRREMEE—EYE - A

from 1 July 2006. The annual rentals are RMB183,000 and
RMB219,000 for the first four years and the remaining six years,
respectively. The annual rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary by
the Company amounted to RMB201,000 for the year ended 31

December 2010.

AR#201,0007T °

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

HBE-ZTEFtA—BH®it+F- &
MERBTAFEHNFRESH A AARE
183,0007T & A R #219,0007T » K &

T—ZFTF+_A=+—HLFE "
Zli@ A G HAGRIRMAFHSE

&t

165



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 871 7% 3 5% i 7%

31 December 2010 =& —

FFEFZA=1—A

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

Pursuant to a supplementary agreement dated 19 March
2007 signed between the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary,
the Company ceased the lease of two leased properties from
Chaoyang Auxiliary with effect from 1 January 2007, the aggregate
annual rental to be paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary by the Company
since 1 January 2007 was reduced from RMB6,952,000 to
RMB6,530,000, with a term of increase of rental for the aforesaid
fixed rental period. The annual rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary
by the Company amounted to RMB6,802,000 for the year ended
31 December 2010.

Pursuant to a supplementary agreement dated 28 August 2007
between Chaopi Trading and Chaoyang Auxiliary, Chaopi Trading
ceased the leases of one property from Chaoyang Auxiliary with
effect from 1 July 2007, the aggregate annual rental to be paid
to Chaoyang Auxiliary by Chaopi Trading since 1 July 2007
was reduced from RMB1,099,000 to RMB945,300, with a term
of increase of rental for the aforesaid fixed rental period. The
annual rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary by the Chaopi Trading
amounted to RMB985,000 for the year ended 31 December
2010.

On 11 November 2007, the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary
entered into a lease agreement with the commencement and
expiry dates on 1 April 2007 and 31 December 2023, respectively.
The rental is RMB900,000 for the first thirteen months and
the remaining rental is at a basic annual rental expense of
approximately RMB1,896,000, with a term of increase of rental
for the aforesaid fixed rental period. The annual rental paid to
Chaoyang Auxiliary by the Company amounted to RMB1,896,000
for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

-

1

40. BEALXRZ (&)

@ (&)

MaE - (&)

(Continued)

Pursuant to a supplementary agreement dated 6 March 2009
signed between the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary, the
Company was permitted to sub-lease one property to a third
party with the commencement and expiry dates on 1 January
2009 and 31 August 2018, respectively. The additional annual
rental is RMB500,000, with a term of increase of rental for the
aforesaid fixed rental period. The annual rental paid to Chaoyang
Auxiliary by the Company amounted to RMB500,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

On 30 April 2004, Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang Auxiliary entered
into a lease agreement with the commencement and expiry dates
on 1 May 2004 and 31 December 2023, respectively. The rental
is RMB16,000, with a term of increase of rental for the aforesaid
fixed rental period. The annual rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary
by Xinyang Tongli amounted to RMB17,000 for the year ended
31 December 2010.

Pursuant to a property lease agreement signed between the
Company and Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Automobile Service
Company Limited (“Tengyuan Xingye”), a subsidiary of Chaoyang
Auxiliary, dated 2 July 2007, the Company leased properties from
Tengyuan Xingye with the commencement and expiry dates on 1
April 2007 and 31 March 2022, respectively. The annual rental is
approximately RMB2,100,000, with a term of increase of rental

for the aforesaid fixed rental period.

(i)

(%)
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@  (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) Pursuant to a deed of indemnity dated 1 March 2006 and a

supplementary agreement dated 10 August 2006, Chaoyang

Auxiliary has undertaken to indemnify the Company against the

following:

168| 20104 4t

any costs, expenses, losses and claims that the Company
and Chaopi Trading may suffer as a result of relocation or
eviction from certain premises rented from outside parties in
the event that any of the corresponding tenancy agreements
is determined to be void due to alack of building ownership

certificates or proper property title deeds by the lessors;

any costs and penalties that the Group may suffer due to
the non-compliance with the relevant PRC laws in respect
of borrowings from the employees, the fact that the relevant
loan agreements were not enforceable, and the fact that
the Group may be subject to a maximum penalty of 5%

of the amount of the total borrowings; and

any costs and penalties that the Group may suffer due to
any breach of the applicable PRC laws and regulations
on the use of the Jingkelong cards and the membership
reward cards which were issued by the Company as part of

the Group’s marketing strategy for its retail operations.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

41.

(b) Compensation to key management personnel of the Group:

40

BEALRZ (&)
b) AEBERETIZEREASZRH

2010 2009

—2-FF ZETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Short term employee benefits 52 HiE B 187 12,855 13,735

Post-employment benefits RIKIEREA] 311 268
Total compensation paid to key MEEEBRABX Mz

management personnel Rk 13,166 14,003

Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included in

note 9 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(i) and
(a)(ii) above also constitute continuing connected transactions

as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans,
other interest-bearing borrowings, debentures, and cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and

trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the Group’s

policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk.
The board of directors reviews and approves policies for managing

each of these risks and they are summarised below:
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41.

FEFZA=1—A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

The Group’s income statement is affected by changes in interest
rates due to the impact of such changes on interest income and
expenses from bank balances, interest-bearing bank loans, other
interest-bearing borrowings and debentures. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available. As at 31
December 2009, the Group did not have long term debt obligations
with floating interest rates. Accordingly, the Group has no significant

interest rate risk.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of the issuance of bank
loans and other interest-bearing borrowings. The Group’s financing
activities are managed centrally by maintaining an adequate level
of cash and cash equivalents to finance the Group’s operations.
The Group also ensures the availability of bank credit facilities to

address any short term funding requirements.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. ¢RiEREEEEREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TENER SR ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end RpEHELERA - KIEEESARETTH
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted AR AEESREEMNIHBERET

payments, is as follows:

Group £E
2010
“B-EB%
Less than 3 to less than 1t02 Over
3 months 12 months years 2 years
On demand PR ZEAEF -2 ikl Total
RER =R BBt=fER k3 [k:3 @zt

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTL ARBTL ARRTT ARBTT ARETRT

Interest-bearing bank RBRITERREMER

and other borrowings (BEERB)

(including interest) - 309,297 900,682 214,372 235,817 1,660,168
Trade and bills payables ARE Y ES S 146,898 918,614 - - - 1,065,512
Other payables HiER R 76,595 1,773 112,590 - - 190,958

223,493 1,229,684 1,013,272 214,372 235,817 2,916,638
2009
—ETNE

Less than 3o less than 1102 Over

3months 12 months years 2 years
On demand PR ZERAED —&Z iR Total
REK =R BAT=fEA MF MF @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank MEBTERREMER

and other borrowings (REFE)

(including interest) - 684,469 920,583 6,054 - 1,611,106
Trade and bills payables EREAREE 115290 909,457 6,460 - - 1,031,207
Other payables HiERR 121,770 13,105 32,101 = = 166,976

237,060 1,607,031 959,144 6,054 - 2,809,289

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010|171



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 #2< Md &3

31 December 2010 —ZF—ZFF+-HA=+—H

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

41, SREMRESEEERBEKRE)

Company ATFE
2010
—E-%2F
Less than 3 to less than 1to2 Over
3 months 12 months years 2 years
On demand PR ZEAEF —-£Zz BB Total
RER =88 BB+-fEA mE mE st
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTLT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTr ARET:
Interest-bearing bank MR BTERREMER

and other borrowings (BEEFIB)

(including interest) - 107,052 266,726 12,123 235,817 621,718
Trade and bills payables ERERREE 138,145 390,461 - - - 528,606
Other payables Hit etk 59,945 1,773 78,314 - - 140,032

198,090 499,286 345,040 12,123 235,817 1,290,356
2009
ZEENE

Less than 3 to less than 1102 Over

3 months 12 months years 2 years
On demand PR ZEAER —5% k) Total
BEX =fiR BAT=fA WE WE @it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETE ARBTT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank R BITERREMETR

and other borrowings (BEERHE)

(including interest) - 362,965 508,173 6,054 - 877,192
Trade and bils payables N ES 108,250 419,317 = = = 527 567
Other payables Hi AR 96,501 7314 28,852 = = 132,667

204,751 789,596 537,025 6,054 - 1,537,426
Credit risk = ARk

Credit risk arises mainly from the risk of counterparties defaulting on
the terms of their agreements. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, a

loan receivable, other receivables and available-for-sale investments

represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation

to financial assets.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis
and credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis, and therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant. The credit risk on balances of cash and
cash equivalents and pledged deposits is low as these balances

are placed with reputable financial institutions.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed in notes

23 and 24 to the financial statements.

The Group’s businesses are principally located in Mainland China
and the Group’s sales and purchases were mainly conducted in
RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, all the Group’s assets
and liabilities were denominated in RMB, except for cash and
bank balances of RMB92,000 (2009: RMB117,000) denominated in
foreign currencies. Accordingly, there would be no material impact
on the Group’s profit or loss and there would be no material impact

on the Group’s equity from changes in exchange rates.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business

and maximise shareholders’ value.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during

the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade and bills payables,
debentures, other payables and accruals and long term payables,
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable
to owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting periods were as follows:

41.

TREREEEERBEE)

EREE ()

AR AIEIR R A AR S B AR B
& ERBISENBCETHE - BRI
AEAALE - AR L R R %
P - R RR R A A B ATH - B
E-T-TER-FTAFH-A=t-8
LEEA - AHEE - BRI
f -

AEBEERERBBELXERERNER - &
HERBFABBRARERNINFAE - FAE
BREMEBRITERMEMER - BNERRK
R Br  HitEMRMERER R
RNFRERERRECEEY -  EABRER
REABAFEAREER - RREHAMER
BENBELRMT

Group
£8

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®FTT

Interest-bearing bank and B BRI TE SR H fh fig 3K
other borrowings 1,615,000 1,581,980
Trade and bills payables BRI R AR 1,065,512 1,031,207
Debentures (EC 498,733 =
Other payables and accruals HEMEM R RIERRE R 597,817 544,630
Other long term payables Hth R EAFET R 10,075 8,900
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeRREEEY (574,532) (413,811)
Net debt FEME 3,212,605 2,752,906

Equity attributable to owners B ATFRA ABGERAR

of the parent 1,492,559 1,388,458
Capital and net debt BERRFAE 4,705,164 4,141,364
Gearing ratio BELE 68% 66%
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42.

43.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 January 2011, the Company acquired a 86% equity interest
in Jingchao from Shoulian at a consideration of RMB259,324,500,
including cash of RMB80,000,000 and trade receivables of
RMB179,324,500. Jingchao was wholly owned by the Company
from then on. Further details of the transaction are set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 18 January 2011.

Because the acquisition of Jingchao was effected shortly before the
date of approval of these financial statements, it is not practicable

to disclose further details about the acquisition.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant

events subsequent to 31 December 2010.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the board of directors on 18 March 2011.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION Hf & #HE 2

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the M T ABEARRRBAREMRFEENFE RE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s KN EASEZAEEESE BE - AEERRAZHE
annual reports, is set out below. This summary does not form part of 2 o K EIWIEZ LTI HFIREK MBS ©

the audited financial statements.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—R-%F | ZTTNF ZTT)\F ZTTEF —TTRF
RMB’000 | RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
AR®TR | ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTE

(Restated)
(EFHRR)
Results ES
Revenue WA 7,438,729 | 6,691,036 6,683,791 5,640,599 4,530,975
Profit before tax BR 5 A A 305,011 253,565 280,264 255,306 205,491
Income tax expense FrisfiAs% (76,510) (65,049) (76,581) (86,434) (74,072)
Profit for the year F % 1) 228,501 188,516 203,683 168,872 131,419
Attributable to: E%J%BA :
Owners of the parent NCIESES DN 180,502 147,783 156,758 124,593 99,577
Minority interests 3&% 1A 47,999 40,733 46,925 44,279 31,842

228,501 188,516 203,683 168,872 131,419

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—2-B%F | “FTAF “TI\F “TTLF “TIAF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE | ARMTE ARMTLT ARMTLT ARMTE

Assets, Liabilities and Equity && - B8ERKEA

Non-current assets EMEEE 2,153,416 | 1,838,827 1,687,913 1,463,681 1,123,480
Current assets MEBEE 3,371,577 | 2,930,017 2,626,281 2,211,520 1,994,434
Current liabilities mEEE (3,365,476) | (3,202,732) (2,748,045) (2,153,002) (1,741,124)
Net current assets/(liabilities) TEEE,/(BE)FHE 6,101 (272,715)  (121,764) 58,518 253,310
Total assets less BEERRBARG

current liabilities 2,159,517 | 1,566,112 1,566,149 1,522,199 1,376,790
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (454,759) (29,236) (77,5633)  (115,907)  (302,145)
Net assets FEE 1,704,758 | 1,536,876 1,488,616 1,406,292 1,074,645
Represented by: JEAE -
Equity attributable to owners BREFAA

of the parent FEEARAR 1,492,559 | 1,388,458 1,325,019 1,242,995 984,973
Non-controlling interests FEIE SR 212,199 148,418 163,597 163,297 89,672
Total equity A A 4 %A 1,704,758 | 1,536,876 1,488,616 1,406,292 1,074,645
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